
 

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 16 June 2022 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's 
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Cllr S Gabriel 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr R Lawton 

Cllr S Bartlett 
Cllr L Dedman 
Cllr B Dion 
 

Cllr L Fear 
Cllr A Hadley 
Cllr A Jones 
 

Cllr J Kelly 
Cllr C Rigby 
Cllr V Slade 
 

 

All Members of the Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee are summoned to attend this 
meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link:  

 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5341 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Clare Johnston email: democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 
8 June 2022 
 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:sian.ballingall@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 

 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 

nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 

member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes To Follow 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
24 May 2022. 

 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 

for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=15
1&Info=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 

meeting. 
 

 

6.   Scrutiny of the BCP Futureplaces Ltd - Revised business plan and 

funding mechanism Cabinet report 
1 - 68 

 To consider the BCP Future Places Report scheduled for Cabinet 
consideration on 22 June 2022. 
  

The Committee is asked to scrutinise and comment on the report and if 
required to make recommendations or observations as appropriate. 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

  

Cabinet members invited to attend for this item: Councillor Phil Broadhead, 
Portfolio holder for Development, Growth and Regeneration 

 
Please note that this report contains an appendix with exempt information 
‘as defined in Paragraph 3 in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972. If the Committee wish to discuss information in 
relation to this appendix it may wish to make a decision to exclude the 

press and public. 
 

(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) 

 

7.   Bournemouth Development Company LLP Winter Gardens Scheme – 
Project update 

69 - 78 

 Bournemouth Development Company LLP (“BDC”) is a joint venture 
between BCP Council and MUSE Developments Limited a subsidiary of 

Morgan Sindall Group plc. 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the current position of 
the Winter Gardens scheme. 

 

 

8.   Work Plan 79 - 96 

 The Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider and 
identify work priorities for its future meetings.  Attached is a proposed list of 
suggested items. 

 
Please could Committee members complete the attached request form if 

they have any items, they wish to see included on the Committees Forward 
plan. 
 

Also attached in the current published Cabinet Forward Plan. 
 

 

9.   Future Meeting Dates  

 To consider and approve the potential suggested future meeting dates as 

set out below, or to set alternative dates whilst taking into consideration the 
approved calendar of meetings. 
 

Potential suggested dates: - 
Wednesday 21 September 2022 – 6.00pm 

Wednesday 16 November 2022 - 6.00pm  
Wednesday 1 March 2023 – 6.00pm 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 

must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



CABINET 

 

Report subject  BCP FuturePlaces Ltd - Revised business plan and funding 
mechanism 

Meeting date  22 June 2022 

Status  Public Report with Confidential Appendix 1 

Executive summary  In May 2021 the Council approved the formation of BCP 
FuturePlaces Ltd, (“FuturePlaces”) a wholly owned Urban 
Regeneration Company (URC). The fundamental purpose and 
principles of FuturePlaces is to drive “Place Making”, regeneration 
and property market transformation both across key sites owned by 
the Council and the wider area to support the aspirations set out in 
the Council’s Big Plan.  

This report seeks approval for funding changes to the business 
model due to a revised approach as proposed in the Councils 
2022/23 Budget as to how the company will be funded. It also 
seeks approval for the revised company business plan as Council 
approval as sole shareholder as such a change is a reserved 
matter under the Shareholders’ Agreement. 

It also seeks approval to streamline the Gateway Approval process 
outlined in the Commissioning Plan. The changes seek to remove 
duplication and ensure that each new stage builds on, and 
complements, its predecessor. There will not be a reduction in the 
work required to investigate options for delivery of each project and 
it is still based on HM Treasury Green Book guidance. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:  

(a) Recommend that Council approve an increase in the 
working capital loan facility to £8m (from £400k) to 
support BCP FuturePlaces Ltd from July 2022. 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer (s151) 
to agree and finalise the terms of the working capital 
loan. 

(c) Recommend that Council approve the revised BCP 
FuturePlaces Ltd Business Plan attached and 
confidential Appendix 1. 

(d) Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to amend 

and finalise the Commissioning Contract to reflect the 
new gateway process and business plan. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Reason for 
recommendations 

To contribute to the Council’s Corporate vision, specifically helping 
to create dynamic places, investing in the homes our communities 
need, revitalising and re-inventing our high streets and local centres 
in line with the vision set out in the Big Plan. 
 

FuturePlaces was formed to ensure BCP Council has the capacity, 
expertise, and resources to drive investment in regeneration and 
unlock value from major Council owned sites; it will also enable 
BCP Council to ensure that we deliver new homes and create well 
designed, local neighbourhoods.  
 
The new funding model accords with the proposal contained in the 
2022/23 Budget approved by Council.  

Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder 
for Finance and Transformation 

Councillor Philip Broadhead, Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Economy and Strategic Planning 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive  

Report Authors Sarah Longthorpe, Director of Delivery - Regeneration  

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Decision 
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. BCP Council’s Big Plan sets the ambition for the BCP area to be world class – 
one of the best coastal places in the world in which to live, work, invest and play. 
The Big Plan sets out five key aims that, if achieved, would deliver changes 
across the whole area supporting the creation of over 13,000 jobs across the 
local economy, the growth of businesses and prosperity of local communities.  

2. One of the aims of the Big Plan is to act at scale and deliver more than 15,000 

new homes for people of all incomes. This target can only be achieved through a 
mixture of direct investment by the Council and enabling third parties within the 
market to build a sustainable mix of housing from affordable homes to high-end 
apartments and houses.  

3. BCP Council is the UK’s 10th largest urban authority.  The Council’s Big Plan sets 
out the need to ‘act at scale’ by intensifying development in town centres and 
unlocking land on redundant brownfield sites, such as Holes Bay.  In theory, the 
Council is in a strong position to drive investment in regeneration.  In practice, it 
lacks the capacity to deliver at the necessary scale and pace to meet the 
challenges of growth and has insufficient in-house expertise in urban 
development and place making.  

Page 2



4. The Council has a duty to obtain best value from the disposal and redevelopment 
of its assets, and an obligation to its communities to deliver successful 
regeneration.  Strategically important sites - such as Holes Bay - have the 
potential to attract investment and jobs, sustaining local prosperity and quality of 
life. The evidence from sites such as Holes Bay, suggests that public sector 
intervention will be necessary to address market failure and unlock their 
development potential.  This can be achieved by creating the development 
management capability and expertise needed to prepare masterplans, develop 
business cases, and formulate investment proposals for such sites and 
appraising the best options for their delivery e.g., direct development; joint 
venture; disposal; community asset transfer.  These sites will require dedicated 
development management support to enable feasibility masterplan studies to be 
carried out.  

5. In April 2021, Inner Circle Consulting (ICC) were appointed by the Council to look 
at alternative approaches to managing investment and regeneration.  ICC carried 
out a detailed review of potential models and concluded that an Urban 
Regeneration Company (URC) was the most viable and attractive option.   

6. At its meeting on 26 May 2021, Cabinet supported the establishment of a URC 
and FuturePlaces Ltd was incorporated on 18 June 2021 with the aim of 
achieving a step change in the scale, pace, and ambition of regeneration across 
the BCP area. The Council now has the potential to deploy the resources and 
expertise needed to deliver regeneration at scale, in a way that was more difficult 
for its predecessor authorities. 

7. On 29 September 2021 Cabinet further approved the formation and funding of 
FuturePlaces to provide the Council with the development management expertise 
and capacity required to progress the key sites. It also agreed the creation of a 
commissioning plan and delivery team to provide oversight of all the regeneration 
and development activity undertaken by the URC, Bournemouth Development 
Company LLP (BDC) and the Bournemouth Towns Fund for Boscombe. 

8. On 27 October 2021 Cabinet received an updated report and approved a 
commissioning approach to regeneration and development along with 
FuturePlaces Business Plan.  

9. The approved FuturePlaces business plan sets out the Stewardship proposition 
and strategic objectives of the company alongside its delivery plan, ways of 
working, governance, and funding structures. 

10. The 2021/22 budget previously assumed FuturePlaces would provide 
development advice funded via an ongoing contractual agreement, with regular 
revenue payments to them to fund feasibility costs. 

11. Following a review of similar practice applied in another regeneration based Local 
Authority Trading Company, Be First, owned by the London Borough of Barking 
and Dagenham (LBBD), an alternative mechanism is being proposed whereby 
payment is based on the successful outcomes of the development advice 

received. Be First acts as a developer for LBBD, utilising their Council and 
commercial investment resources to acquire sites, get planning consent and 

build out new residential and commercial developments. 

12. This new approach from 1 July 2022, means FuturePlaces require a larger 
working capital loan from the Council to cashflow their feasibility activity prior to 
presenting individual business cases to Cabinet, and potentially Council, for 

Page 3



approval. The working capital loan will be required to cover all company 
expenditure including salaries, overheads and project costs. 

13. Upon successful approval of these business cases by the Council in line with the 
prevailing financial regulations, FuturePlaces will be entitled to invoice the 
Council for their professional development advice and consequently receive 
payment. This income flow will enable FuturePlaces to repay its debt if 
appropriate. 

14. This approach enables the Council to acquire professional advice directly linked 
to a specific scheme or asset and capitalise the cost.  

15. Due to the change in the proposed funding of the company, it is necessary for 
FuturePlaces to revise the company business plan and seek Council approval as 
sole shareholder as such a change is a reserved matter under the Shareholders’ 
Agreement. The Council will require that the company has a strong and credible 
business plan that demonstrates how the company will generate sufficient funds 
to repay the working capital loan and ensure the company remains a going 
concern. 

16. In respect of the proposed charging mechanism, value for money will need to be 
demonstrated and evidenced.  

17. A copy of the new business plan is attached in Appendix A along with the 
confidential financial Appendix 1. 

 

Proposed Charging Mechanism 

18. The proposed charging mechanism applies to the services the company is 
contracted to provide to the Council via the commissioning agreement. This forms 
the basis on which FuturePlaces will be entitled to invoice the Council for their 
professional development advice and consequently receive payment for their 
services. The commissioning agreement will be updated to reflect these changes. 

19. The company is proposing to adopt a cost-plus charging model as used by many 
other professional service businesses applying the “rule of thirds” approach. 

20. Under this model, of the total invoice amount, one third is approximately staff 
cost, one third is a contribution to other costs and overheads (including external 
expenses and third-party fees) and one third is contribution to profit and reserves.  

21. FuturePlaces will have the discretion to apply a lower cost rate for smaller 
schemes where appropriate to ensure viability and deliverability. 

22. In order for this charging mechanism to be benchmarked it has been translated 
into a range of day rates for a range of job roles based on staffing costs, an 
allocation to overheads and a margin.  These rates are outlined in the business 
plan and detailed in table 1 below. 

23. FuturePlaces day rates have been benchmarked against numerous other third-
party consultancy rates who have recently provided the Council with similar 
services. These include but are not limited to, TRA Architects, Chilmark 
Consulting, Forty Group, Knight Frank, WSP, AECOM, and Inner Circle 
Consulting. The rates have also been benchmarked against the published 
government framework prices for consultancy services with the average day rate 
of £1,146.  

Page 4



24. The table below summarises this day rate benchmarking activity and the range of 
fees applied. 

Job Title Third Party 
Rates 
range 

Average 
Third 
Party 
Rate 

FuturePlaces 
Proposed Rates 
range 

Managing 
Director/Associate 
Director/Principle 

£1,100-
£2,250 

£1,381 £1,090-£1,210 

Director/Senior 
Consultant/Associate 

£588-£1,252 £905 £477-£1090 

Project Manager £587-£1,500 £657 £477-£808 

Project Support £408-£656 £421 £233-£477 

Table 1 – Day Rates  

 

25. Under this proposed charging model, as long as at least two thirds of the projects 
by value are approved by the Council at the point of their capitalisation, in theory 
FuturePlaces would secure enough funding to pay for any remaining projects that 
were aborted.   

26. It should be noted that projects may be aborted, or not accepted, for a range of 
reasons. The critical point is that the decision to proceed with a project is a 
decision solely for the Council. Therefore, FuturePlaces will need to fund the cost 
of any work on these projects from the contribution to its reserves generated from 
the successful projects for which fees are received.  

 

Success Fees  

27. In some project circumstances a success fee could be applied, rather than the 
cost-plus charging model. Where a success fee is proposed this will be clearly 
stated and the necessary approvals sought within the project business case.  

28. The principle of a success fee is common in the property sector and is applied as 
a pre-agreed percentage whether on an acquisition or disposal or introduction of 
funding. Be First charge 0.8% for this activity and agents’ industry rates vary 
dependant on market conditions and currently range from 0.8% -1.5%. BCP 
Council is regularly presented with property opportunities from third party agents 
including their fee proposals to enable us to benchmark and verify this range. 

29. It is proposed that a fee is applied to FuturePlaces projects that include land 
acquisitions and disposals at the Full Business Case stage. It is proposed that 
FuturePlaces operate within a fee range of 0.8-1.25%. This will be negotiated 
dependant on the scale and complexity of the project and it is intended that 
FuturePlaces would operate at the lower end of the range presented in paragraph 
28 to ensure that value for money can be clearly demonstrated. 

30. In addition, where FuturePlaces have negotiated with third party developers to 
acquire a turnkey solution and will subsequently be undertaking a development 
management function a development management fee could be applied. This 

Page 5



would be expected to cover the company costs incurred in relation to the 
negotiation, acquisition, and development management services for the delivery 
of the scheme through to completion. As a comparable, Be First charge 2.5% of 
the Gross Development Value (GDV) for this activity however this includes 
obtaining a planning consent. Any proposed development management fee for 
FuturePlaces should be commensurate with the level of services provided and 
the agreed basis of application determined for each individual project. This is 
expected to be within a range of 1-5-2.5% and will be negotiated dependant on 
the scale and complexity of the project. 

31. The Bournemouth Development Company LLP (BDC) apply a 5% development 
management scheme to their schemes based on the total development value 
less land value and any finance costs. The development management services 

provided include obtaining a planning consent, contractor procurement, and 

build out of new residential and commercial developments. 

32. The proposed fee percentages detailed in the business plan are within the 
industry range and comparable with Be First and are therefore deemed to be 
reasonable. 

 

Value for money 

33. It is important to note that the proposed day rates and success fee percentages in 
the business plan are less than or within the range of other third-party market 
comparables, demonstrating that FuturePlaces is providing value for money. 

34. It is recommended that the charging mechanism is reviewed after a 12-month 
period and annually thereafter to ensure it is robust for both parties and is 
demonstrating best value. 

 

Simplification of the Gateway Process 

35. In support of the new company funding mechanism, work has been carried out 
jointly between BCP Council and FuturePlaces to test the appropriateness of the 
project gateway process originally designed by Inner Circle Consultants. Both 
parties agreed that the process required streamlining to ensure project 
momentum whilst protecting the public interest and providing a clear and 
evidenced audit trail behind key decisions. 

36. In March 2022 an Audit and Governance committee reviewed the Governance of 
FuturePlaces and also questioned the number of gateway stages. 

37. The new proposal seeks to simplify the project gateways by removing duplication 
from documents and ensuring that each new document builds on, and 
complements, its predecessor. There will not be a reduction in the work required 
to thoroughly investigate options for delivery of each project, nor in the quality of 
the information provided, but in the number of documents produced.  

38. The proposed process remains based on HM Treasury Green Book guidance but 
sees Gateway 0 removed and the Project Inception Document (PID) and the 
Strategic Outline Case (SOC) consolidated into a Project Outline as Gateway 1. 
As a result, the stages have reduced from 7 to 6.  

39. The revised gateway process is detailed in Appendix B. 

Page 6



Summary of financial implications 

40. As outlined in the Cabinet report dated 29 September 2021 the financial 
implications for the Council stepping up its regeneration efforts in this way are 
significant. It approved a 2021/22 budget of £3.024m to support the setting up of 
the company’s operations and the costs of the Commissioning function and the 
necessary technical and market studies such as ground investigations; ecological 
surveys and transport assessments and noted the 2022/23 additional resource 
requirement of £3.47m. 

41. Prior to the 2022/23 budget it had been assumed that FuturePlaces would 
provide development advice funded via an ongoing contractual agreement, with 
regular revenue payments to them.  

42. Following a review of similar practice elsewhere, the 2022/23 budget of the 
Council was drawn based on a revised approach to the financing of 
FuturePlaces.  

43. The new approach to funding the company from 1 July 2022 will mean that 
FuturePlaces will require a working capital loan facility to cashflow its professional 
services activity prior to presenting schemes to Cabinet and Council for approval. 
Each scheme will require a supporting business case, setting out the anticipated 
outcome, the funding strategy and details of any pertinent risks. FuturePlaces will 
invoice the Council for its professional advice. This income flow will enable the 
company to repay its working capital loan debt. 

44. Following approval of a business case and payment of advice to FuturePlaces 
the risk transfers to the Council. Should the Council subsequently decide to 
cancel a scheme, then the abortive costs will be charged to the Council’s revenue 
account.  

45. It is proposed that a working capital loan facility of up to a maximum of £8m is 
made available to the company to be drawn down as detailed in the terms of the 
working capital loan agreement. This maximum amount has been calculated 
based on the total amount required to progress each project to a capitalisation 
point. 

46. The Council is required to charge FuturePlaces an interest rate on the loan in line 
with Subsidy rules. A rate of 0.5% above base rate will be applied which reflects 
the opportunity cost lost to the Council if it were to be invested via its Treasury 
function. 

47. This is the same rate and approach that is applied to the Councils other TECKAL 
company Bournemouth Building and Maintenance Limited. 

48. The business plan from FuturePlaces as attached indicates that the £8m working 
capital loan facility can be repaid to the council. The current cashflow indicates 
the debt will peak as £5.3m in Q1 23/34 reducing to £0 by the end of the 2026/27 
financial year. 

49. In line with good accounting practice, the Council will be required to regularly 
review the performance of FuturePlaces to determine if there is any need for a 
provision for potential loss. No provision for potential loss is being made at this 
point. 

Page 7



Summary of legal implications 

50.  FuturePlaces is a wholly owned Council company operating under the TECKAL 
exemption. The governance arrangements between the Council and the company 
are managed through a suite of legal documents including a Shareholders’ 
Agreement.  

51. The Shareholders’ Agreement entered into on the 25 January 2022 sets out the 
agreed form for the operational business plan to be prepared by the company 
and para 15 Schedule 3 states that adopting or amending the business plan is a 
reserved matter that requires the approval of Council, as recommended in this 
report.   

52. In addition, the Council has a fiduciary duty to conduct the administration of the 
Council in a business-like manner, with reasonable care, skill and caution, and 
with due regard to the interest of the public and the proposed increase in the 
Working Capital Loan Agreement and changes to the charging mechanism will 
need to be considered within this overarching framework, having taken into 
account the advice of the S151 officer set out above.  

53. The decision to change the charging mechanism will not alter the contractual 
relationship between BCP Council and FuturePlaces beyond the need to ensure 
that the revised mechanism is reflected in the Commissioning Agreement if the 
changes are approved. 

54. The current working capital loan agreement allows for an increase in funds to be 
allocated, subject to the necessary Council approvals, so this document will not 
need to be revised other than for the value to accommodate this increase. 

55. Any member who has a conflict of interest should not take part in the debate on 
this matter and may not vote.  

56. The relevant regulations in this regard are Regulations 12 and 13 of the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012. These concern general conflicts of interest. Their 
purpose is to ensure that decisions are taken only in the public interest and in the 
absence of actual or perceived personal interest. They provide that as soon as 
practicable after any meeting of a decision-making body at which an executive 
decision was made a written statement must be produced containing specified 
information including; 

 

 A record of any a record of any relevant conflict of interest either declared by 
any member of the body which made the decision or declared by any 

executive member consulted by the member or officer taking the decision 
which relates to that decision; 

 In respect of any such declared conflict of interest, a note of dispensation 
granted by the head of paid service. 

57. The Regulation 14 of the same regulations further provides that in respect of 
executive decisions made a note of any dispensation granted should be made 
public. This necessarily requires that the reason for any dispensation should be 
clear, justified, reasonable and proportionate in all the circumstances. 

Page 8



Summary of human resources implications 

58. FuturePlaces has its own employment terms and conditions and payroll 
arrangements.  The Company Reserved Matters provide detail on the decisions 
that remain with the Council in relation to Director appointments.  Care will be 
taken to minimise the prospect of TUPE transfer and Equal Pay considerations.  
Staff will be recruited into the company on the open market subject to identifying 
individuals with the requisite skills, qualifications, and experience.    

Summary of sustainability impact 

59. As a Council owned company, FuturePlaces will be required to provide its 
operational response to the Council’s climate change emergency declaration.    

60. FuturePlaces will contribute to the Council’s Climate Emergency action plan by 
ensuring new development is resource efficient, adopts low carbon technology 
and leads to sustainable communities which are resilient to climate change and 
contribute to Biodiversity Net Gain either on site or through natural capital and 
landscape strategies.  

61. FuturePlaces will be tasked, through the Commissioning Contract, with pursuing 
a low carbon approach to development: minimising the carbon impact of new 
developments, ensuring walkable neighbourhoods, and providing good access to 
public transport services.    

62. FuturePlaces will play a key role in ensuring that opportunities are taken to 
reduce our city region’s carbon footprint by providing sustainable transport 
choices and delivering low carbon, energy efficient buildings. They will aim to 
lead by example developing cleaner supply chains building local capacity to take 
forward the carbon reduction agenda. Cleaner supply chains and building the 
capacity to deliver carbon reduction locally.  

63. Within the constraints of commercial viability and value for money, FuturePlaces 
will aim to deliver the best possible standards of low-carbon, energy efficient 
buildings taking account of the established BREEAM classifications. 

64. A Decision Impact Assessment (DIA) was completed in relation to the creation of 
the URC and sustainability feedback from officers across the Council was used to 
inform the requirements set out in the approved Council commissioning plan.  
Projects and programmes delivered by FuturePlaces will be subject to further 
assessment as part of the business case development process to ensure that 
individual schemes meet the required standards.   

Summary of public health implications 

65. By accelerating regeneration and investment there will be a better prospect of 
sustaining jobs and prosperity across the BCP area, improving housing and high-
quality open spaces, with well designed, walkable, inclusive neighbourhoods that 
help promote health and well-being.  

66. FuturePlaces will aim to produce developments that place a premium on quality-
of-life considerations including safe, walkable neighbourhoods with good local 
amenities and access to quality green and open space.  

Page 9



Summary of equality implications 

67. An Equality Impact assessment has not been carried for this report as its primary 
purpose is to provide an update on the approach to funding regeneration activity 
to be delivered by FuturePlaces and agree an updated business plan, rather than 
change its overall strategy, the focus of which remains focussed upon tackling 
those areas within BCP that need regeneration and renewal.   

68. However, as a company wholly owned by the Council operating under the Teckal 
exemption it will be bound by the same obligations in relation to equalities as the 
Council itself and full Equalities Impact Assessments will be undertaken as 
developments are progressed.   

Summary of risk assessment 

69. The key risks associated with the proposal to approve FuturePlaces updated 
business plan and proposed funding mechanism are as follows:  

a. Operational risks through failure to achieve delivery targets set out in 

the Commissioning Contract.  

 
b. Financial risks  

i) 2022/23 Budget. The refinancing of FuturePlaces is a key financial 

planning assumption. As set out in the February 2022 Budget report to 
Cabinet and Council the 2022/23 budget of the Council will need to be 
redrawn if Council does not support the proposal to finance the 
company by way of a £8m working capital loan. The redrawing of the 
budget would involve reconsideration of the Councils commitment to 
these costs against the other priorities directly funded within the 
revenue budget. 

ii) Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) update and funding of 
schemes. The business plan makes it clear that funding sources will 
include BCP Council, central government, co-investment partners, and 
commercial arrangements. In respect of any Council contributions 
several of the schemes will form part of the already approved capital 
and borrowing strategies of the Council. However, as it stands the 
Council has no unallocated debt headroom against its £855m approved 
debt ceiling. The Medium Term Financial Plan update report presented 
elsewhere on the 22 June Cabinet agenda makes a request to the 
Audit & Governance Committee and then Council to extend the debt 
limit further. Treasury Management is within the Audit & Governance 
Committee’s terms of reference.  

iii) Aborted Business Case risks 

a. if the Council does not subsequently agree the 
business cases brought forward by the company. 

Initially this remains a FuturePlaces liability however 
ultimately this will be a risk borne by the Council as 
shareholder. 

b. Should any business case be approved by BCP 

Council but then subsequently aborted at a later date, 
the previously capitalised costs would need to be 
written off to the revenue account. 

Page 10



c. The Council will need to regularly review the financial 
position of the company and determine if any 
appropriate revenue provisions should be made. 
 

iv) Business Case Assumptions.  

a. FuturePlaces business case is predicated on a number 

of key assumptions including estimates regarding 
resources deployed on each scheme, timing and value 

of transactions expensed, timing of capitalisation 
events and speed of associated invoicing and receipts 
of payment, plus an estimate of abortive works. 

Significant variations to these assumptions may create 
currently unforeseen financial challenges. 

b. The due diligence undertaken has relied in part on 
comparisons with other similar activity being 

undertaken by other local authorities. 
c. This is the first time BCP Council will have used the 

proposed funding methodology, consequently it shall 
be monitored and reviewed annually as we gain 

experience and an increased understanding of it. 
 

c. Planning risks through failure to achieve consent for proposed projects.  

 
d. Market risks through a downturn in the property market affecting local 

property values or engagement with an external investment partnership 

that could fail. 

 
e. Reputational risks through FuturePlaces creating difficulties for the 

Council e.g., developing a position contrary to planning policy.  

 

70. These risks will be managed through the relationship between the client team and 
FuturePlaces guided by the terms of the Commissioning Contract and related 
agreements including the requirement for the company to develop and maintain a 
risk register for its key projects and activities.  

Background papers 

26 May 2021 Cabinet Report - Proposed Regeneration Vehicle Options Appraisal  

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4683/Public%20reports%20pack%202

6th-May-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

29 September 2021 Cabinet Report – Accelerating regeneration and investment in the 
BCP area 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4836/Public%20reports%20pack%202

9th-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

27 October 2021 Cabinet Report - BCP Commissioning Plan for Regeneration and 
Development and Urban Regeneration Company Business Plan 

Page 11

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4683/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-May-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4683/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-May-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4836/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4836/Public%20reports%20pack%2029th-Sep-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4837/Public%20reports%20pack%202
7th-Oct-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

 Appendices   

Appendix A– BCP FuturePlaces Ltd Business Plan  

Appendix 1 – CONFIDENTIAL - BCP FuturePlaces Business Plan Financials 

Appendix B – Revised Gateway Process

Page 12

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4837/Public%20reports%20pack%2027th-Oct-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4837/Public%20reports%20pack%2027th-Oct-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


 Appendix B – Revised Gateway process 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Business Update FY22/23 

DRAFT  

 

 
Version 4.15 

Date: 31 May 2022 
 
 

 
  

Page 15



 
 

Contents 
1 Introduction....................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Reasons for new business plan ............................................................................. 1 

1.2 Stewardship Proposition.......................................................................................... 2 

1.3 Company Objectives  ............................................................................................... 5 

1.4 Roser of Projects  ...................................................................................................... 7 

1.5 Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Standards  ................................. 8 

2 Progress To Date ............................................................................................................ 9 

2.1 Corporate Progress  .................................................................................................. 9 

2.2 Project Progress  ..................................................................................................... 10 

2.3 Resourcing ............................................................................................................... 11 

3 Delivery ........................................................................................................................... 12 

3.1 Volume of Delivery ................................................................................................. 12 

3.2 Quality of Delivery .................................................................................................. 13 

3.3 Quality of Place  ....................................................................................................... 13 

3.4 Affordability .............................................................................................................. 14 

3.5 The role of the Public Sector  ................................................................................ 14 

3.6 Project Delivery ....................................................................................................... 15 

3.7 Project Delivery Timing .......................................................................................... 18 

4 Organisation & Governance  ........................................................................................ 23 

4.1 Recruitment & Staffing  ........................................................................................... 24 

4.2 Policies ..................................................................................................................... 24 

4.3 Delegated Authorities............................................................................................. 25 

4.4 Board Membership ................................................................................................. 25 

5 Approval Gateways  ....................................................................................................... 26 

6 Finance  ........................................................................................................................... 29 

6.1 Budgetary Pressures.............................................................................................. 29 

7 Funding Model ............................................................................................................... 30 

7.1 Working Capital Loan............................................................................................. 31 

7.2 Cost – Plus Charging Model ................................................................................. 32 

7.3 Success Fee Model................................................................................................ 34 

7.4 Use of Reserves  ..................................................................................................... 35 

7.5 Backstop provisions  ............................................................................................... 35 

Page 16



7.6 Size of Working Capital Facility Requested ....................................................... 36 

8 Communications Strategy ............................................................................................ 38 

8.1 Aims .......................................................................................................................... 38 

8.2 Objectives  ................................................................................................................ 38 

8.3 Audiences  ................................................................................................................ 39 

8.4 Establishing the Brand  ........................................................................................... 39 

9 Risk Management ......................................................................................................... 40 

9.1 Interpretation of rules for PWLB Funding regarding regeneration activity .... 40 

9.2 Invoice at point of capitalisation model ............................................................... 40 

9.3 Adoption of Stewardship Model ........................................................................... 40 

9.4 Changing Economic Circumstances  ................................................................... 41 

9.5 Capacity of BCP Council departments to take on FuturePlaces related work  .  

9.6 Timing of Council Approvals under new business model  ................................ 42 

9.7 Inappropriate Targeting of FuturePlaces staff  ................................................... 42 

9.8 Increasing Environmental Regulation ................................................................. 42 

9.9 Commercially Sensitive Information Management - ......................................... 42 

9.10  Conflicts of Interests  ............................................................................................... 43 

Confidential Appendix 1: Revised FY 22/23 budget  .......... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Appendix 2: Draft Stewardship Kitemark; Draft Towards Zero Standard; Draft 

Equalities/Perspectives User Experience Checklist.  ....................................................... 44 

  
 

Page 17



1 

 

1 Introduction 

BCP FuturePlaces Ltd (“FuturePlaces”) was incorporated to use a Teckal exemption by BCP 

Council in June 2021 with the intention of accelerating and enhancing the regeneration of the 

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole area.  

FuturePlaces will drive regeneration, regenerative development and property market 

transformation to secure the BCP area’s place potential both across key sites owned by the 

Council and the wider area to support the aspirations set out in the Council’s Big Plan. The 

company’s work is led by a desire for place-making and will deploy patient capital, sourced 

from BCP Council, central government, co-investment partners or on commercial terms 

elsewhere to secure value enhancement across a range of socio-economic measures and to 

seek best returns over the medium / long term.   

FuturePlaces published its initial business plan in October 2021.  At this time, it committed to 

submitting a revised business plan during Spring 2022.  This is that document. 

1.1 Reasons for new business plan 

Although the fundamental purpose of FuturePlaces as set out in the initial October 2021 

business plan remains unchanged1, a new business plan is required to reflect three 

fundamental operational changes: 

1.1.1 A need to reflect a revised approach in BCP Council Budget 2022/23 to 

FuturePlaces funding 

The BCP Council 2021/22 budget assumed FuturePlaces would provide development advice 

funded via a contractual agreement, with regular payments from the Council to FuturePlaces 

for work done. Due to the current challenging public sector budgetary environment (affecting 

all Local Authorities), a revised approach was proposed and determined to be desirable by the 

Council. The revised approach would enable the Council to purchase development advice for 

each specific scheme as part of its normal due diligence. This would therefore be considered 

capitalisable and funded from capital resources including borrowing. 

The 2022/23 Council budget assumed a revised approach to the financing of the company. 

Instead of funding via regular contractual payments allowed for as part of the Council’s 

revenue budget, an alternative mechanism was proposed by the Council which sought to 

explicitly link payment for advice to capitalisable projects to the fullest extent possible.   

The new approach to funding the company will mean that FuturePlaces will require a working 

capital loan facility up to a maximum of £8m to fund its operations prior to presenting schemes 

to Council for business case approval.  Approval of a single option proposal and its inclusion 

within the Council’s Capital Investment Programme, will trigger an invoicing event at which 

time it is agreed that FuturePlaces may invoice for work to date on the project, and periodically 

thereafter for any further work contained within the approved business case. The income to 

FuturePlaces would enable the company to repay its working capital loan over the portfolio 

lifecycle so long as the majority of projects are taken forward by the Council (As described 

                                                 
1 To be a municipal stewardship entity to secure regenerative development and transformative place-making, 
whilst accelerating delivery of housing and communities.  See October 2021 FuturePlaces Business Plan. 

Page 18



2 

 

further below in Section 7).  The intention is that this should provide sufficient headroom to 

cover aborted projects and other costs and provide capacity for the adoption of new projects 

over time. 

Each scheme (or, in the case of large, long or complex projects, each sub-project or stage) 

will require a supporting business case, setting out the proposal, anticipated outcome, the 

funding, delivery and exit strategy together with approximate funding quantum required.  The 

business case will in each case detail any pertinent risks foreseeable at the time of 

presentation.  

1.1.2 Additional Projects 

BCP Council has asked FuturePlaces to look at additional projects as it became clear that 

FuturePlaces has the relevant knowledge and experience to undertake them. Some of these 

are site specific and fit within the funding mechanism outlined above.  Others relate to place-

making and support for existing council functions without being directly connected to a 

particular site, such as financing of Council assets, development of design codes and of the 

Big Conversation etc.   

One of the key issues addressed in this document is the provision of resource necessary to 

deliver upon additional projects as these are identified, and the next steps in the execution of 

the original projects.   

Any such additional projects that cannot be funded from FuturePlaces’ own funds will only be 

undertaken if sufficient funding can be secured, such as by means of grant money, external 

financing or funding by BCP Council from its revenue budget.  Any incremental funding would 

require prior approval from BCP Council. 

1.1.3 Streamlining of the Governance Process 

During the initial start-up phase FuturePlaces and the BCP commissioning team have 

reviewed the Project Gateway process developed by Inner Circle Consulting.  From the outset 

this process was known to be somewhat unwieldy, and this concern was brought to a head by 

the March 2022 Audit & Governance Committee which commented that a more streamlined 

approach with more clearly defined governance oversight, review and approval points should 

be considered. FuturePlaces has worked with BCP Council to review the gateway process 

and has streamlined it as detailed in section 5.  The process maintains the same number of 

“touchpoints” for scrutiny and approval but reduces the number of documents needed to 

achieve the result.   There is a reduction in documentation by sharing common narrative, policy 

and principle across all relevant projects.   

FuturePlaces is reviewing its internal governance, oversight and transparency procedures and 

this will be tested during Q1 FY22/23. 

1.2 Stewardship Proposition  

The October 2021 business plan set out the case for innovating delivery of regeneration and 

sustainable growth through the adoption of a municipal stewardship approach, highlighted by 

the Building Better Building Beautiful Commission. This has precedents in pre 2010 Urban 

Regeneration Companies with a broad regeneration remit; in the New Town/Development 

Corporation Model, and in the private sector where increasingly the master-developer 

Page 19



3 

 

approach is being adopted for large scale sites and is increasingly becoming recognised both 

within government and by private sector developers and investors.   

FuturePlaces is demonstrating that municipal stewardship model can provide a template for 

how regenerative growth can be delivered nationally to help address levelling up and securing 

high quality transformational development.  

This business plan sets out the case for a model that can produce market-focussed 

regeneration and place-making funded through a revolving loan facility until a single option 

has been determined and the project invoiced to the Council.  The model would facilitate a 

continuing stream of regeneration schemes and provide the means to take them through the 

process of inception, briefing, project development, due diligence and optimisation to a point 

of at which an investment decision can be made. This will place BCP in a stronger position 

with respect to attracting government funding and institutional support, underpinning a 

sustainable program of regeneration and place-making.   

Where appropriate and proportionate to the scheme and its site fundamentals, a patient capital 

approach to investment in land and buildings will be adopted to achieve places that are built 

not just for the present, but to provide quality environments over the long term, with associated 

lower operating costs and the energy efficiency that comes from building well. All of this flows 

naturally from the decision and capacity to invest for the long term. 

The municipal stewardship model adopted by FuturePlaces and agreed with BCP Council 

places the needs of those who choose to live, work, grow and play in the area at its core and 

aims to accommodate all life stages and needs. The stewardship approach engages with both 

the developers of land and property AND the investors and management in the current 

standing stock to curate best outcomes.  In the case of BCP Council, this could in many cases 

be simplified because frequently one or more of these parties will be internal. 

There are a number of key principles that support the Stewardship Approach, outlined 

below:  

Page 20



4 

 

 

(Source: Building Better, Building Beautiful Cost & Value Report)  

These differ from traditional development approaches in the following ways:  

Standard Development  Stewardship  

  
Consult the Community once design well under 

way, generally after submission of planning 
application  

Engage the Community and other 

stakeholders from the outset and on a 
continuing basis. Look for alignment of 

interest with the LPA.  

Maximise the most immediately valuable use 

class and volume of building envelope on site, 
without regard for long term placemaking  

Identify the most appropriate development 

for the physical location given economic and 
social needs, to drive desirability of the 

wider area over the long term  

Make contribution to local community via s106 or 

CIL; negotiate down as far as possible  

Consider what the wider area needs over 

the long term  

  

Use high quality designers to secure planning 
permission then value engineer quality out of 

scheme  

Build design quality management into 
every key decision on critical path.  

Page 21



5 

 

Acquire planning permission and trade on to 
possibly multiple delivery providers  

Build design quality, social infrastructure 
and place making criteria into contracts & 

covenants; and maintain controls through 
ongoing role in SPVs/JVs.  

Driven by short-term returns  Driven by the creation of long-term value  

   Table 1: Standard vs Stewardship approaches (Source: The Stewardship Initiative)  

  
A Stewardship Kitemark has been promoted by The Stewardship Initiative as a potential 

benchmark setting out measurable standards to help embed the key stewardship 

characteristics into schemes. This has attracted the attention of DLUHC, Homes England and 

the Archbishop of Canterbury’s Commission on Housing. It is proposed that BCP FuturePlaces 

adopts the Stewardship Kitemark to pilot the standard across its schemes.  

In order to deliver BCP Council’s ambitions for the area, it is proposed that BCP FuturePlaces 

will adopt an Operating Model founded on the four key principles illustrated below.  

 
 

Figure 1: Requirements for a successful stewardship approach  

1.3 Company Objectives  

FuturePlaces was created by BCP Council to be the Council’s centre of excellence on place-

making and to deliver advice on smart growth across the area.  The regeneration FuturePlaces 

will facilitate connects social, economic, and environmental aspirations through an approach 

to the built environment that creates places that are attractive to live, work and play in, that 

attract investment, nurture economic vitality and provide an environment that improves quality 

of life for residents, businesses and visitors of all ages and needs.  This is not simply building 

beautiful buildings.  It embeds a range of ESG objectives, that are not just good to look at, but 

are also beautiful to interact with. 

Page 22



6 

 

 

1.3.1 Services 

The primary services that will be provided by the URC will be development management 

activities such as: 

1. Project scoping work on council owned sites including project inception, briefing, 

capacity studies, masterplans and project viability testing and financial modelling. 

2. Commissioning professional and technical work from architects, quantity 

surveyors, civil engineers, planning consultants, master-planners, urban/landscape 

designers, and other professionals necessary to prepare designs from the early 

concept stage through to detailed planning and contractor procurement. 
3. Preparing business cases ensuring that schemes are developer/investor ready 

and the necessary market studies, budgets, contractor procurement routes, delivery 

strategy, design quality management and, if appropriate, exit routes have been 

clarified. 
4. Design and Review of proof-of-concept due diligence process 

5. Providing commercial advice and interpretation to the Council on market demand 

and investor appetite across key property sectors and segments e.g., residential, 

commercial, retail, leisure, industrial. 
6. Providing urban development and place-making advice and best practice 

guidance to the Council to ensure that schemes optimise place potential; have a low 

carbon impact; provide sustainable returns; create attractive, walkable; liveable 

communities and are resilient to climate change. 
7. Promoting development opportunities on BCP Council sites to the investment 

market including Institutional Funders and private investors and developers. 
8. Providing advice to the Council on suitable exit routes for sites e.g., disposal, 

retention, and direct build, development with a JV partner. 

9. Preparing 3rd party funding bids on behalf of the Council to external bodies such as 

Homes England and MHCLG. 
10. Managing assets on behalf of the Council in cases where it has been agreed that 

management of assets should transfer to the URC2. 
11. Identifying asset acquisition strategies in support of regeneration, income 

generation and other policy objectives. 
12. Managing community consultation and stakeholder engagement work on behalf 

of the Council to support the advancement of agreed schemes through planning. 
13. Representing the Council, where agreed, in meetings with Government and public 

agencies. 

14. Supporting efforts to attract inward investment to the BCP region and managing 

investor relations, where agreed 
15. Contributing place-making input to departmental strategies (e.g., Marketing & 

Inward Investment; Destination Proposition & Hotels Strategy; High Streets Strategy; 

Green Infrastructure Strategy, Cultural Strategy etc.) 

16. Developing thematic place-based projects to support market transformation 

proposition - bringing key URC inputs of place-making, enabling, collaborative project 

definition, design quality management, agile delivery, strategic investment - subject to 

corporate agreement via Project Outline Case (POC). 

                                                 
2 It should be noted that it has not been agreed at this time that any assets , or the management of any assets, 
will  be transferred to FuturePlaces. Should this happen in the future, it would need the approval of BCP 
Council. 

Page 23



7 

 

17. Providing urban development and place-making advice to the council to support 

the regeneration of local areas drawing upon identified best practice. 
18. Identifying leading edge planning and development practices to develop the BCP 

area as a national centre of excellence in stewardship driven development. 

 

1.3.2 Regeneration & Place-Making Principles  

The FuturePlaces’ Business Plan and Commissioning Plan support the delivery of the BCP 

Council Big Plan to achieve BCP’s place and economic potential. Quality of Life and wellbeing 

are at the heart of the place proposition, which is manifested though several key maxims:  

 

 Sustainability is built into the urban form, through encouraging the enhancement or 

emergence of mixed use walkable neighbourhoods that are easily accessible to all 

demographics, using a full range of healthy and low carbon modes of mobility, together 

with the use of sustainable materials and consideration of whole-lifecycle energy 

efficiency and content of the built environment. 

 Beauty of place is key.  People do not want to live in ugly environments that do not 

have usability and accessibility built in. 

 Good quality place-making is the product of a well-developed process which considers 

the needs of the stakeholders of all types, ages, and needs, carefully considers Council 

policy and priorities, and which engages leading edge professional inputs.   

 

The key principles guiding the place-making objectives of the company, that align to BCP 

Council's Corporate Objectives are illustrated below: 

 

Figure 2: Key place-making principles – BCP FuturePlaces Business Plan, Commissioning Plan and Regeneration 
Strategy 

 

1.4 Roster of Projects  

Page 24



8 

 

14 projects were initially identified to be overseen by FuturePlaces and the company was 

charged with co-authoring the BCP Regeneration Strategy.  It was anticipated from the outset 

that FuturePlaces would also provide expert place-making advice to the council.  The company 

has since been commissioned by the council to deliver three additional projects (Carters Quay 

Design Quality Management, design work on Poole Town Quay in support of the Seafront 

Strategy and initial feasibility work on Poole Station Quarter).  In addition, workstreams around 

thematic studies, whilst incorporated in the works and budgets approved in the October 2021 

budget have been separated into separate projects.   The total number of projects is therefore 

now 19.  These are further described in Section 3.6 below.  In addition, FuturePlaces has 

collaborated with BCP Planning Department to secure a DLUHC Design Code pilot project to 

support the delivery of two design codes at the Lansdowne area and Poole Quays. These are 

separately funded.  

 

 

1.5 Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Standards  

FuturePlaces has adopted a set of ESG and quality standards. These standards will help to 

inform decisions on project prioritisation, and the assessment of value for money both in the 

context of returns on investment and wider best value considerations. 

 
Figure 3. Proposed ESG Standards  

 
The adopted standards will be reviewed from time to time and adjusted either through 

decisions taken by the Board or through the business plan process. 

 

  

Page 25



9 

 

2 Progress To Date  

2.1 Corporate Progress 

Since operations started in late August 2021, FuturePlaces has achieved a number of key 

corporate deliverables. These include: 

 Business Plan delivered and agreed in October 2021                                         

 Senior Management Team appointment, team structure revised and recruitment of 

the deeper team well underway. 

 Non-Executive Director (NED) recruitment process underway. It is expected that 

the NEDs will be appointed by September 2022 

 Set up of key business processes with HR, procurement, marketing & comms, 

legal, IT and finance initially outsourced to BCP Council.  Dedicated resource is 

now being brought online to address bottlenecks in Finance, Marketing and 

Comms and procurement. Legal capacity and availability of relevant specialisms 

remains under review. 

 Set up of office – a key aspect of FuturePlaces has been adoption of an in-person 

led working model. FuturePlaces management believes that this is necessary to 

encourage the rapid cross fertilisation of ideas in a creative, innovation led start-up 

environment whilst enabling remote working when this is appropriate.  

FuturePlaces is currently working to identify appropriate longer term office space. 

 Two wide-ranging business planning events held. FuturePlaces board, appropriate 

BCP Council staff and full FuturePlaces team met to ensure buy-in and full 

communication of the company objectives and ethos. 

 Creation of the FuturePlaces’ brand and related marketing materials. 

 Commissioning and delivery of The Big Conversation, which is moving to Rollout. 

 Identification of linked Place Potential exercise to contribute place-making inputs 

to the formulation of the local plan vision, regeneration strategy and an investment 

prospectus. 

 London launch of FuturePlaces event, attended by key figures from central 

government, senior management from large, aligned long term investors and other 

stakeholders. This has proved invaluable in founding relationships with 

government which are now being expanded into other areas.  

 MIPIM preparation and attendance, at which FuturePlaces and its business model 

was introduced to over 50 UK and international companies and institutions, with a 

view to attracting investment, securing design expertise for specialist assets, and 

engaging government participation. 

 Internal ‘ways of working’ exercise to establish working method with BCP council 

counterparts Regular meeting schedule established with Planning, Housing & 

Growth & Infrastructure. 

Page 26



10 

 

 High level engagement with Homes England, Department for International trade 

(DIT) and the Department for Levelling-Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC). 

 Building BCP – industry interface in process of establishment. 

 Engagement with potential key partners, both local stakeholders and best in class 

advisors and investors:  

 Establishing an innovative process of project inception, scoping, and design quality 

management to secure best quality place-making and design outcomes 

 Commissioning and delivery of 30 project enabling and due diligence workstreams.  

Further non-core deliverables: 

 Support to council on project to determine optimal financing structures both for a 

variety of council owned assets and future acquisitions.  This work is on-going; 

however, a number of potentially interesting structures have been identified.   

 Engagement with planning department on transformation process, planning 

strategy and local plan. 

 Discussions with key local stakeholders on property needs to support and facilitate 

long term employment and growth in the area.  

 

2.2 Project Progress 

Considerable progress has been made across the project programme. This is noted in more 

detail in Section 3 below.  

An initial set of projects will be brought forward to Council for approval during Autumn 2022 – 

these include Beach Road Car Park, Chapel Lane Car Park, Constitution Hill, Poole Civic 

Centre; Christchurch Civic Centre and the Green Car Park project.   

Development work is in hand on longer term strategic projects including Holes Bay, Heart of 

Poole, Wessex Fields, Boscombe, Christchurch/Two Rivers Meet and the Bournemouth Arc – 

including Westover Road.   

Working with BCP Planning Department FuturePlaces secured a DLUHC Design Code pilot 

to develop design codes for the Lansdowne area and Poole Quays which are now in 

production. 

Design improvements facilitated by FuturePlaces for Carters Quay phases 4-6 were 

successfully integrated into the transaction which completed in November 2021. 

Works are also under way on  

 Delivery of Poole Town Quay; 

 Development of the Poole Promenade overall public realm design concept building 

on the EA investment in the flood defences and bringing coordination to diverse 

sites to form a coordinated waterfront public realm. 

Page 27



11 

 

 Winter Gardens Review/BIC capacity study and reprovision.  

 Regeneration/place-making strategy for Poole Old Town linked to the identification 

of the Poole Quays Design code. 

 Regeneration/place-making strategy for Lansdowne area – the second Design 

Code pilot. 

 Regeneration/place-making strategy for Westover Road – as part of the 

Bournemouth ARC project. 

 Design quality management inputs at Carters Quay. 

Some thematic cross-cutting projects have also emerged either in response to a critical 

regeneration/sustainability issue or as a response to the management of overall project risk. 

 

2.3 Resourcing 

All of this has been done in a period intense change in the property sector and employment 

markets.  Post lockdown, the tightness of employment markets is well documented and 

competition for skills is intense.  Despite this, by carefully articulating its offering, FuturePlaces 

has managed to hire excellent talent.  However, competition for suitably qualified staff in the 

property sector remains intense, and this continues to drive salary levels upwards.  Despite 

this, FuturePlaces is still managing to operate within budget.   

The new hires are now coming on-line, and it is expected that the pace of delivery will 

accelerate as staff are added during Q2 and Q3 2022. 

 

  

Page 28



12 

 

3 Delivery  

This section sets out how FuturePlaces will deliver against its main objectives and sets out 

the key targets and goals for delivery, the critical, and details of how these will be addressed. 

 

3.1 Volume of Delivery 

Estimates have put the number of new homes needed in England at up to 345,000 per year, 

accounting for new household formation and a backlog of existing housing. In 2019/20, the 

total housing stock in England increased by around 244,000 homes3. Within the BCP area, 

the Council’s Big Plan calls for 32,000 new homes over 16 years, against a housing stock 

currently in the region of 186,000 homes.4 This calls for ambitious delivery: an average of 

2,000 new homes per year. 

The “Fixing our Broken Housing Market “Housing White Paper (2017)5 identified a threefold 

problem of “not enough local authorities planning for the homes they need; house building that 

is simply too slow; and a construction industry that is too reliant on a small number of big 

players.” In the BCP area, this has been further exacerbated by stalled sites failing to deliver 

on sites granted planning permission. This exacerbates an already low rate of delivery of new 

homes, with consequent pressure on the supply demand dynamic, which is driven by wealthy 

inward migration and buyers seeking second homes.  Affordability becomes even more of a 

problem in a market that already suffers from some of the worst affordability ratios in the UK. 

The Letwin Report6 highlighted the issue of absorption rates which is a critical factor in 

inhibiting the level of growth that an area can sustain versus the desire to improve the built 

environment and sense of place.  However, given the low levels of supply into the local market 

at present, it is anticipated that take-up rates of proposed volumes can be sustained especially 

where this is supported by high quality place-making. 

The local property market is characterised by some pockets of high property value, however 

elsewhere, there are concentrations of HMOs, low intensity single use development and a 

history of stalled sites failing to deliver. Commonly, the design response to schemes neither 

fully optimises the place potential of the location, mixed use nor delivers wider community 

benefit. 

There are many areas across the BCP area that need regenerative development to secure 

new housing, jobs, amenities, and services and to unlock the opportunity to create better 

places. Land use intensification to meet the pressure for growth equally needs to be managed 

to support sustainability through the creation and enhancement of walkable neighbourhoods,  

and support place-making and lifestyle choice. 

 
 

                                                 
3 CBP-7671.pdf (parliament.uk)  
4 https://www.bcpc ouncil.gov.uk/A bout-the-c ouncil/O ur-Bi g-Plan/O ur-Bi g-Plan.aspx 
5https://assets.publishing.service .gov.uk/government /uploa ds/syste m/uploa ds/attac hment_ data/file /5904 64 /Fixi ng_o

urbrokenhousingmarket_-_print_ready_ve rsion.pdf  
6 https://www.gov.uk/gove rnmen t/pu blicatio ns/in depen dent -re view- of-b uild-ou t-final-re po rt 

Page 29

https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7671/CBP-7671.pdf
http://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Our-Big-Plan/Our-Big-Plan.aspx
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-build-out-final-report


13 

 

3.2 Quality of Delivery 

As well as the pressing demand for new homes there is a crisis in terms of housing quality. 

“According to Shelter, 51% of new homeowners said they have suffered problems with their 

new properties, including failures with the utilities, complications with the state of construction 

and barely finished fittings.”7 However, this does not identify the full extent of the problem. The 

quoted statistic only identifies problems with implementation issues - 

items that should work but do not, or which do not measure up to the original specification. It 

does not address the lack of quality in the original specification. Standard housebuilding has 

little incentive to invest in sustainable technology that can reduce lifecycle costs to 

homeowners and reduce the burden on the environment of household heating, lighting, waste 

and water processing and similar services. The investment in such technologies can only be 

passed on as a cost to the house purchaser making schemes uncompetitive in an environment 

where buyers are already stretched to meet the initial purchase price and may be unable to 

determine a present value for consequential costs that could occur in the future. 

Equally, standard residentially-led development frequently fails to deliver on infrastructure, 

community servicing, a sufficient affordable component and place-making elements. 

 

3.3 Quality of Place 

As identified by the Building Better, Building Beautiful Commission, all too often schemes do 

not deliver attractive, sustainable places where people will be proud to live, work and raise 

families. Identikit, low quality developments - which pack maximum units onto a site - might 

deliver volume housing targets but can be damaging to residents’ wellbeing and quality of life. 

They will usually also fail to deliver on sustainability objectives as such housing is generally 

highly car dependent. Under-served car dependent communities are also more likely to suffer 

from mental and physical health problems at a cost to the individual and society, placing 

additional burdens on the NHS and social care8. 

An important aspect of sustainable place-making is the availability of local community services 

and significant scale of mixed-use development. These help to support fully-fledged, walkable 

communities with the opportunity for people to live and work more locally, reducing car 

dependency. Standard housebuilding has consistently demonstrated difficulty with both the 

delivery of adequate social infrastructure to support large scale schemes, and also the delivery 

of mixed-use development which has been shown to be more sustainable (supporting 

significant trip reduction); better health and wellbeing outcomes; and improved lifestyle choice 

and local economic value capture.9 FuturePlaces is committed to ensuring that its place-

making is suitable for all members of the community. Accessibility and inclusivity are key tenets 

of the adopted design philosophy. As well as supporting specific BCP Council projects aimed 

at meeting the requirements of elderly residents with care needs through the development of 

                                                 
7 https://adamarchitecture.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Placemaking-A-patient-approach-to-creating-communitiesdigitals.pdf  
8 Living with beauty: report of the Building Better, Building Beautiful Commission - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
9 Walkability and Mixed Use - Making Valuable and Healthy Communities | Knight Frank Research  

 

Page 30

https://adamarchitecture.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Placemaking-A-patient-approach-to-creating-communitiesdigitals.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/living-with-beauty-report-of-the-building-better-building-beautiful-commission
https://www.knightfrank.com/research/report-library/walkability-and-mixed-use-making-valuable-and-healthy-communities-7667.aspx


14 

 

an Extra Care Village, FuturePlaces aims to include a proportion of extra care homes and 

facilities in its strategic scale projects, where possible, supporting a housing offer that meets 

the needs of all life stages and circumstances. Although BCP’s current provision of 398 units 

is in excess of the number of residents to whom BCP is providing extra care, indicating a short-

term excess capacity10, using local population projections it is anticipated that there will be a 

need for up to 1,312 units by 2030 and 1,577 by 2040.  

Accommodating differing user and occupier needs both in schemes and through its role in 

supporting high quality public realm design is at the heart of FuturePlaces approach and is 

supported by the adoption of its equalities check-listing process, systematic early stakeholder 

engagement and both market demand and need assessment. 

 

3.4 Affordability 

There is a need to explicitly address the problem of housing affordability as well as housing 

numbers. Simply delivering more unaffordable housing does not assist many local people. The 

problem is especially acute within the BCP area which is experiencing very high levels of 

demand from affluent relocators and second home buyers.  This makes it very difficult for local 

residents who earn less than the national average in key employment sectors such as tourism 

and social care.   

Data from the ONS suggests that whilst the average price of houses in the UK is currently 

7.8x average earnings, within the region the figure is approximately 9.8 in the BCP area as a 

whole and even more in the metropolitan areas.11 

 

3.5 The role of the Public Sector 

Local authorities have a key role to play in addressing the housing crisis; the delivery of 

sustainable growth and securing place-based regeneration. 

The Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole area has a combined housing stock of 

approximately 186,000 homes, of which 89.7% are privately owned, and the remainder either 

local authority or housing association owned12. The total net supply has increased over the 

past 5 years by 6,589, below the targets set by the National Planning Policy Framework, and 

there is an urgent need to increase both the quantity and the quality of homes within the area 

to start addressing these sibling crises and address sustainable resilience place-making in the 

process. 

                                                 
10 See https://democrac y.bcpc ouncil.gov.uk/doc uments /s293 25 /Appendix%202 %20 -

%20Extra%20Care%20 Housing%2 0St rate gy.pdf  

11 Source: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/pe oplepopulationa ndc ommunit y/housing/bulletins /housingaffordabilityinenglanda ndwales/2 0
20#national- and-regional-analysis 

 
12 Local authority data: housing supply (parliament.uk) 

Page 31

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s29325/Appendix%202%20-%20Extra%20Care%20Housing%20Strategy.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s29325/Appendix%202%20-%20Extra%20Care%20Housing%20Strategy.pdf
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/bulletins/housingaffordabilityinenglandandwales/2020#national-
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/bulletins/housingaffordabilityinenglandandwales/2020#national-
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/local-authority-data-housing-supply/


15 

 

In order to meet the targets, set in the Big Plan, the rate of delivery needs to be increased 

dramatically.  But there is a risk that rapidly increasing volume could lead to the production of 

large quantities of low cost, standard form product. 

The Stewardship Initiative undertook a systematic review of high quality, contemporary 

housing schemes and the commercial conditions under which these have been taken forward. 

In every case, high quality, residentially led urban development at scale has been shown to 

be the product of long-term landowner involvement, and of a patient approach to returns on 

capital invested.13 BCP Council, as a long-term stakeholder within the area, is well placed to 

implement a stewardship approach to place-making within its conurbation, supporting the area 

now and in the future. 

FuturePlaces’ stewardship-led approach to delivering regeneration offers the opportunity to 

simultaneously address these challenges, delivering more plentiful, better homes for local 

residents, whilst improving the quality of life for existing residents and securing the place-

making ambition set out in the Big Plan. 

 

3.6 Project Delivery 

At inception, FuturePlaces was allocated a portfolio of 14 sites to take forward for 

consideration.  These varied in size and complexity from car parks identified as surplus to 

requirements, redundant corporate assets through to supporting complex area-based 

regeneration projects, such as Boscombe and Holes Bay.  

            Table 2: Initial FuturePlaces Project List 

1 Beach Road Carpark 

2a BIC/ARC 

3 Boscombe 

4 Chapel  

5 Christchurch  

6 Heart of Poole 

7a Holes Bay 

8 Poole Civic Centre 

9 Turlin Moor 

10 Wessex Fields 

11 Port of Poole 

12 Constitution Hill 

13 Extra Care Village 

14 Cotlands Road 

                                                 
13 Stewardship Initiative: https://www.ste wardship-initiative.com 

Page 32

http://www.stewardship-initiative.com/


16 

 

 

The October 2021 business plan detailed project budgets for feasibility works through to the 

next gateway stage.  As outlined in the gateway process BCP Council would be given the 

opportunity to consider and approve the expenditure needed to progress a particular option.  

This process enables a feasibility and options process to determine whether it is a worthwhile 

commercial risk to spend money on a particular option or delivery route.   

During the last six months, FuturePlaces conducted option analyses on the majority of its sites; 

during this period project workstreams have crystallised and additional projects added into the 

FuturePlaces remit.    

Table 3: Project List as at April 2022 

 Project Rationale for New Project 

1 Beach Road Car Park Original project list 

2 BIC/ARC Original project list 

2a Winter Gardens Review  Requested by council due to 

changing market and policy 

circumstances. 

2b BIC Capacity Study and Re-Provision Requested by council in 

consequence of exercise 2a 

above building on work 

undertaken by Culture and 

Leisure Team. 

2c Westover Road – charette and urban design strategy Activation of ARC project 

deploying stakeholder 

engagement techniques and co-

design processes. 

3 Boscombe Original project list 

4 Poole Old Town and Quays  Chapel Lane project expanded 

recognising importance of 

securing regeneration of Old 

Town to support wider 

regeneration ambitions for Poole. 

4a Chapel Lane (North) – mixed use development Mixed use scheme 

4b Chapel Lane (South) – Green Car Park Pilot green car park recognising 

important role this high quality car 

park plays in visitor patronage of 

Poole Centre. 

4c Poole Quays Design Code (DLUHC Pilot) DLUHC pilot 

4d Poole Town Quay – design and delivery BCP design / delivery commission 

4e Poole Promenade (West Quay to Hunger Hill) – design 

and delivery 

Key integrative project unlocking 

regeneration of the Poole 

Waterfront; coordinating live 

development proposals and 

optimising EA flood mitigation 

Page 33



17 

 

 Project Rationale for New Project 

investment to produce high quality 

public realm. 

4f Poole Waterfront – technical studies – aggregate impacts Development of evidence base to 

support Poole Quays projects. 

5 Christchurch Local Plan Support and Capacity Study Original project list 

5a Reuse of Christchurch Civic Centre Original project list 

5b Christchurch Civic Centre Green Car Park Pilot green car park recognising 

important role this high quality car 

park plays in visitor patronage of 

Christchurch Centre. 

5c Christchurch Civic Campus Masterplan Original project list 

5d Christchurch High Street to station – urban design 

strategy 

Project adopted recognising 

importance of securing improved  

connectivity to railway station and 

optimising adjacent development 

sites.   

6 Heart of Poole Original project list 

7 Holes Bay Original project list 

7a Land remediation, stabilisation and flood mitigation 

strategy 

Technical studies with early point 

of capitalisation. 

7a Holes Bay Meanwhile Use Masterplan and Delivery Recognising incremental 

approach to delivery 

7b Holes Bay – Phase 1a: Hamworthy Urban Village & New 

Park 

Discrete delivery phase 

responding to stakeholder 

engagement requirements. 

7c Holes Bay - Water, Waste and Energy strategy Technical approach to optimise 

potential of site to meet key 

regulatory requirements and 

produce innovative solution.  

7d Holes Bay Waterfront & Public Realm Linked to Poole Promenade 

project – generated by need to 

secure design coordination with 

Carters Quay scheme (in delivery) 

8 Poole Civic Centre Original project list 

9 Turlin Moor Original project list 

10 Wessex Fields Original project list 

11 Port of Poole Response to key partner’s 

development and investment 

needs to secure local business 

growth. 

12 Constitution Hill Original project list 

13 Extra Care Village Original project list 

Page 34



18 

 

 Project Rationale for New Project 

14 Lansdowne & Cotlands  Original project list (as Cotlands  

Road) 

14a Lansdowne Charette & Design Code DLUHC pilot to secure urban 

design framework for area and 

public realm approach. 

15 Carter’s Quay Design Quality Management (DQM) 

Exercise 

Design Quality Management 

involvement required by council. 

16 Poole Station Quarter Memorandum Of Understanding 

in discussion with Network Rail 

and SW Rail to optimise 

opportunity to secure a multi-

modal movement hub supporting 

sustainable travel. 

17 Seafront – project support In discussion with Seafront Team 

to support their delivery 

programme 

18 Thematic Studies: 

- The Big Conversation 

 

- Place Potential Plan & Studies  

 

 

- Developing BCP Industry Group 

 

Project to explore resident and 

stakeholder values to guide place-

making programme 

Technical studies to develop 

emerging place narrative into a 

coordinated approach to 

regeneration and place-making 

Engagement initiative to 

interrogate industry barriers to 

development delivery and to inert-

mediate these with BCP Council, 

LEP and others. 

19 Cross Cutting Projects: 

-Charettes Programme 

- Design Codes 

- Green Car parks 

- SuperLoos 

- High Streets Renaissance 

- Strategic Landscape & Natural Capital Investment 

Approach (inputs) 

Projects with multi-locational 

application to deal with key place-

making or sustainable 

development issues identified. 

 

3.7 Project Delivery Timing 

Projects have been allocated into five categories: Advanced Delivery Sites, Strategic Projects, 

Thematic Studies, Cross-Cutting Projects, and Additional Projects as set out below in more 

detail. 

Page 35



19 

 

 

 

3.7.1 Advanced Delivery Sites 

The advanced delivery projects list consists of five sites, these are: 

 Beach Road Car Park 

 Chapel Lane Car Park 

 Constitution Hill 

 Christchurch Civic Centre  

 Poole Civic Centre 

FuturePlaces aims to bring a business case outlining a single option proposal for each of these 

sites to BCP Council during the autumn of 2022.  If approved, this would trigger the ability for 

BCP Council to capitalise the project costs and hence for FuturePlaces to raise an invoice for 

its works to date.  From the Councils perspective, any future expenditure as detailed in the 

business case on a development project can be capitalised, or alternatively the asset may be 

released for sale if surplus to requirements. 

The next stage of development of these projects will require additional work, from 

FuturePlaces staff and where necessary external consultants.  The costs of these works are 

included in the revised budgets presented below in Section 6.  It is important to note that this 

request for increased spending is not an overspend.  In fact, as can be seen in Section 6, 

FuturePlaces has delivered the work done to date under budget.  The requested budget is for 

further work that either depended on the option for the site selected during initial phase works, 

or that could not be foreseen without decisions on whether to proceed with a particular option, 

or that support projects that were not within FuturePlaces remit at the time the prior business 

plan was written. 

 

3.7.2 Strategic Projects 

The strategic projects are larger, more complex and longer-term projects including: 

 Boscombe 

 BIC/ Winter Gardens 

 Holes Bay 

 Poole Old Town & Quays 

 Heart of Poole 

 Christchurch Civic Campus (which includes a capacity study for parking and 

strategy to improve the environmental footprint) 

 Wessex Fields 

Page 36



20 

 

Each of these projects is being broken down into a series of stages bespoke to each project. 

 Boscombe: Key activity is to support the submission of the Towns Fund business 

cases in September 2022. 

 BIC/ Winter Gardens: A business case setting out a strategy for reprovisioning the 

BIC and corresponding redevelopment of the BIC and Winter Gardens sites will be 

brought to BCP Council during December 2022.  

 Holes Bay:  Plans are being taken forward for key remediation and infrastructure 

works for presentation during December 2022.  A hybrid application or Local 

Development Order (LDO) will be brought forward during 2023. 

 Poole Old Town & Quays: A project is being brought forward in stages with Poole 

Town Quay forming the first phase with a Futures Fund Bid and OBC to be 

delivered in the Summer 2022; a design charette across the area will be conducted 

during the Autumn 2022 to support the production of the Poole Quays Design Code 

part funded by DHLUC in March 2023. 

 Heart of Poole: A first stage project to identify public realm improvements around 

the Lighthouse; bus station and to support the regeneration of Brownsea House is 

in hand.  It is anticipated that this business case will be brought forward in Autumn 

2022 and may be the subject of an application for government funding. 

 Christchurch Civic Campus: Work is imminently due to start on a stakeholder 

engagement and project briefing exercise to consider the basis of an urban design 

approach and overall masterplan for the Civic centre and Two Rivers Meet area. 

This will inform the development of the masterplan during Late 2022/2023. 

 Wessex Fields: Work is due to start on a stakeholder engagement and project 

briefing exercise to consider the basis of an urban design approach and overall 

masterplan for the Wessex Fields project.  This will inform the development of the 

masterplan during Late 2022/2023. 

 

3.7.3 Thematic studies 

(a) The Big Conversation 

FuturePlaces, working with BCP Marketing and Communications Directorate commissioned 

1HQ to undertake a deep and community wide engagement exercise to understand what it is 

about BCP that residents value and what their future needs and aspirations for the area are.  

This work has been delivered and is being used to inform the future branding and 

communications strategy of the Council.  In parallel, it will form the basis of the Place Potential 

exercise that FuturePlaces will use to inform the regeneration strategy.  The Place Potential 

exercise will enable to creation of an investment prospectus and could be a valuable input to 

the Local Plan. 

(b) Place Potential Plan and Strategy 

Page 37



21 

 

This workstream is essential to underpin the production of the BCP Regeneration Strategy, to 

support the Local Plan Vision, inform a BCP Investment Prospectus and support bids to 

organisations such as Homes England and DLUHC for project funding. 

(c) Developing BCP – Industry Survey & Group 

A further area of activity has been to look at barriers to delivery such as skills shortages, supply 

chain issues etc. A representative group of built environment specialists and local stakeholders 

is being established. Membership will be dynamic and rotating so as not to favour any specific 

commercial interest or other group. The group will be surveyed to frame an industry view on 

key barriers to delivery.   It will be an important interface between the industry and council on 

these matters to reinforce current engagement points. 

3.7.4 Cross-cutting Projects 

The cross-cutting projects have emerged to either support the wider regeneration/place-

making remit of FuturePlaces, or to produce generic solutions to key Big Plan delivery 

commitments or secure sustainable development. As the name suggests, these projects have 

implications across a number of schemes.  These are:  

(a) Charette Programme 

Programme of area-based Charettes (Westover Road, Poole Old Town, Lansdowne, 

Christchurch High Street to Station; Seafront & Sandbanks) supporting the Design Codes 

programme and the development of area-based regeneration strategies. 

(b) Design Codes 

FuturePlaces worked with collaboratively with BCP Planning Team to secure £120,000 of 

funding from DLUHC in a competitive process to fund the development of design codes for 

Poole Quays and Lansdowne which will be completed by March 2023. 

(c) Green Car Parks 

A greening programme has been proposed to deal with a number of environmental issues 

associated with traditional blacktop carparks.  These include reprovisioning with porous 

material to facilitate sustainable urban drainage (SUD), structural planting to enhance the 

visual attractiveness of the sites and encourage biodiversity and the provision of low energy 

lighting, solar generation where possible and EV charging.  A priority list is being compiled of 

which Chapel Lane (South) and Christchurch Civic Centre will operate as pilots.  Concept 

technical drawings are being prepared along with other technical workstreams. Once these 

are completed costings can be determined and a business case will be constructed for 

presentation to BCP Council. 

(d) Superloos 

Public lavatories have become a topic of great concern following Covid, and the increased 

influx of visitors to the beaches during peak holiday periods.  The Superloos project aims to 

deliver a number of high-quality, architect designed public lavatories in locations of high 

demand. A list of potential locations is being compiled for agreement with the Council. Project 

briefing with key user groups will be undertaken and a concept brief will be completed and 

Page 38



22 

 

costed. A business case will be presented to BCP Council to develop the project to the next 

stage, including conducting an architectural competition. 

(e) High Streets Renaissance Strategy 

Building on recent work undertaken by BCP Future Lab, the company will develop an 

innovative approach to High Street regeneration. Initial areas of focus are: Christchurch Road, 

Boscombe; Poole High Street and Westover Road.  A project plan is in development for each 

of these locations. Once these are completed, costings can be determined, and a business 

case constructed for presentation to BCP Council. 

(f) Strategic Landscape Plan & Natural Capital Investment Approach 

The need for a strategic approach to biodiversity net gain/water and Suitable Alternative 

Natural Green Space (SANGs) have been identified as critical to the Council, FuturePlaces 

delivery programme and also to the development industry.   

FuturePlaces has been holding discussions with Council colleagues and the land 

management industry to develop a strategic, coordinated approach to natural capital. The 

objective is to coordinate requirements and secure net gain whilst also considering 

opportunities for revenue generation through offering solutions to third parties. 

 

3.7.5 Additional projects 

FuturePlaces has been asked to consider additional projects that were not contemplated at 

the time of the October 2021 business plan.  These include:   

 Poole Station Quarter – Network Rail master-planning has started; FuturePlaces 

will work with Network Rail and internal stakeholder to maximise the opportunity 

and ensure good integration with the Heart of Poole project. 

 Bournemouth Station Quarter – Network Rail master-planning has started; 

FuturePlaces will work with Network Rail and internal stakeholder to maximise the 

opportunity and ensure good integration with the Lansdowne and easy transition 

into the town centre. 

 Port of Poole - Working closely with the Poole Harbour Commissioners, 

FuturePlaces is developing plans to ensure that employment and skill development 

opportunities are secured for the long term on the port site.  Opportunities also 

exist to capture business that has grown out of the trend towards “staycations” as 

Poole is increasingly seen as a boat haven of choice for boats of all sizes. 

All of these need an approval for financing by BCP Council before any external 

works can be undertaken to the extent that they cannot be funded from 

FuturePlaces own funds, unless external funding can be secured. 

 

 

 

Page 39



23 

 

4 Organisation & Governance  

The corporate structure is shown in the diagram below.  

 
Key :  

 
 

FuturePlaces has realigned reporting lines to better reflect the functionality of the company.  

The structure consists of 5 core teams and a cross cutting project management capacity 

linking operational management to project management & programming: 

 Operations Team: Responsible for the operation of the company, finance, 

modelling and operational issues.   

 Asset Management: Land assembly, joint venture structuring and consideration 

of the use of the asset, current, meanwhile and future and how revenue can be 

generated from it in whilst providing best quality service to the community and 

visitors.  

 Project Inception & Place-making: Tasked with the processes necessary to 

initiate a project, such as developing the project briefing documents, managing the 

inception phase, organising initial works to determine site capacity and potential 

uses, design charettes with local stakeholders. 

 Development & Design Management: Detailed scheme design and management 

of the delivery process, ensuring design quality management throughout the 

project lifecycle and that place-making outcomes are secured. 

 Engagement: Responsible for communication to and from all key stakeholders, 

from elected representatives to local residents and other local community, 

business, special interest and stakeholder groups.  Two-way communication is 

Page 40



24 

 

essential to ensure that community needs are being appropriately met and fed into 

the design process, and that stakeholders are kept fully informed of the 

development of ideas as plans take shape. 

As outlined in the October 2021 business plan FuturePlaces can access essential services 

from BCP Council via a resource agreement where appropriate. These services include IT, 

Finance and Legal. The provision of these services will be reviewed as the Company evolves. 

The teams report into an identified member of the Senior Management Team which in turn is 

overseen by the Managing Director.  

The SMT reports, via the board to the shareholder, BCP Council and also via regular SMT 

engagement meetings with the SRO, the Director of Regeneration at BCP Council. 

 

4.1 Recruitment & Staffing 

FuturePlaces allows greater flexibility in staff renumeration, enabling the recruitment and 

retention of the best people in key fields to meet capacity and, or capability gaps. 

The Company has developed a corporate induction programme and will deliver policies and 

training courses that facilitate an inclusive, safe and socially responsible workplace for its staff 

and to enhance substantive skills and performance to support high quality stewardship 

development. 

 

4.2 Policies 

The following policies have been developed and adopted: 

 Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy 

 Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Policy 

 Leave Policy 

 Health & Safety Policy 

 Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy 

 Expenses Policy 

 Environmental Policy 

 Whistleblowing policy 

 GDPR Policy 

 Grievance and Complaints Policy & Procedure 

 Social Media Policy 

 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy 

Page 41



25 

 

All members of staff are made aware of our Corporate Standards: Draft Stewardship Kitemark; 

Towards Zero Standard, Equalities Checklist Procedure. 

It should be noted that as an external company, these policies and procedures may differ from 

BCP Council policies covering the same subject matter. 

FuturePlaces is in the process of developing an induction programme to educate new staff on 

the processes needed for good place-making and design quality management that have been 

established by the company. 

FuturePlaces will have a commitment from inception to source the best and most appropriate 

talent regardless of ethnicity, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, marital 

status, socio-economic background or other characteristics, whether protected or not.  All staff 

will be empowered to fulfil their roles and seek career advancement within roles available 

without fear of discrimination, harassment or victimisation. 

 

4.3 Delegated Authorities 

The Company’s scheme of delegated authority remains unchanged and is in accordance with 

BCP Council’s Scheme of Delegation.  

 

4.4 Board Membership 

The composition of the Board is determined by BCP Council as shareholder via the reserved 

matters with a minimum of 3 members.   

It is anticipated that at full strength the board will be composed of not less than 6 members: 

 

It is anticipated that the Chair will be appointed for a term of three years and will normally be 

selected from amongst the non-executive directors.  However, BCP Council retains the right 

to replace the directors and chair. 

 

 

 

Page 42



26 

 

5 Approval Gateways 

In support of the new funding mechanism, work has been carried out jointly between BCP 

Council and FuturePlaces on the appropriateness of the project gateway process originally 

designed by Inner Circle Consultants. Both parties agreed that the process required 

streamlining and simplifying to ensure project momentum whilst protecting the public interest 

and providing a clear and evidenced audit trail behind key decisions.  Audit and Governance 

Committee also commented that the process would benefit from fewer but clearer points of 

oversight.  

The new proposal seeks to simplify the content of reports and business cases required for 

projects to pass through the project gateways. This will be done by removing duplication from 

documents and ensuring that each new document builds on, and complements, its 

predecessor. There will not be a reduction in the work required to thoroughly investigate 

options for delivery of each project, nor in the quality of the information provided, but in the 

number of documents produced.  Gateway 0 has been removed as a step, because it is a 

duplication of the introduction of the projects in the business plan.  

The proposed process remains based on HM Treasury Green Book guidance but sees the 

Project Inception Document (PID) and the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) consolidated into a 

Project Outline, and the stages detailed below have reduced from 7 to 6. 

The new process is summarised here: 

 Stage 1 - Project Outline Case (POC) - will be created for each project and form part of 

the Business Plan (refreshed annually). Each year Cabinet and Council approve the 

Business plan along with the working capital loan. 

o For new projects - identified outside of the annual business planning process - a 

Project Outline Case will also be completed and considered by the Company Board 

or Cabinet depending on the project value and/or any feasibility funding required.  

The Project Outline Case will identify whether funding requirements can be met 

from FuturePlaces normal resources, or whether separate funding is requested. 

 Stage 2 – Outline Business Case (OBC) - FuturePlaces uses its working capital loan 

to fund the work required to create an OBC for each project (some projects may be 

broken down into sub-projects to support phasing of delivery, each with its own OBC). 

The OBC will appraise options and make a recommendation to Council for approval of 

a preferred, single option including the anticipated outcome, the funding strategy, and 

details of potential risks foreseeable at that stage. Council approval of a single option 

constitutes a capitalisation event for the Council and allows FuturePlaces to invoice for 

works to date.  Approval of the OBC will authorise the necessary works to develop a 

Full Business Case. 

 Stage 3 – Full Business Case (FBC) – a FBC is prepared for the project, including 

detailed designs and costings. Council approval of the FBC is required to move forward 

to procurement, contracting and delivery. 

 Stage 4 - Procurement, contracting and delivery. 

Page 43



27 

 

 Stage 5 - Project closure. 

 Stage 6 - Benefits realisation. 

The project stages above are supported by a series of gateways to govern investment 

decisions. At each decision point a series of questions must be answered before the project 

can progress to the next stage. These are set out in the table below. 

 
Stage  Gate

way  
Document Decision-

Maker 
Key Consideration 

Project 

Conception and 
feasibil ity 

1 Business Plan  

or  
New Project 
Outline Case (if 
outside of the 

annual Business 
Planning 
Process) 

FuturePlaces 

Board 
 
 
Cabinet/ 

Council  

 What is the challenge and the potential 
solution? 

 How does it fit with the Big Plan? 

 What is the potential triple-bottom line value to 
the Council? (Financial, social, environmental) 

 Is it a good idea? 

 What are the possible uses or possible 
solutions/Options? 

 Is it feasible, and potentially financially viable? 

 Does FuturePlaces have the capacity (time and 
budget) to take it forward?  

 Approval gives green light to spend money from 
the Working Capital Loan to produce OBC for 

each site (or project) identified, and delivery 
programme 

Options Appraisal 
and 
Recommendation 

2 Outline Business 
Case (OBC) 

Cabinet/ 
Council  

 Brings together feasibility work, including high 
level designs 

 Options appraisal (Do something, No Nothing, 
Do Optimum, etc.) and single option 
recommendation for taking forward to Full 

Business Case 

 Capitalisation point 

Detailed design 
and Full Business 
Case 
Development 

3 Full  Business 
Case (FBC) 

Cabinet/ 
Council  

 Does the project deliver strategic objectives? 

 Does the project meet our design quality 
commitments? 

 Does the financial case meet minimum return 
and maximum investment conditions? 

 What is the agreed delivery mechanism (direct, 
JV, SPV etc.)? 

 Can we action the development programme 
(e.g., award contractor; enter JV; etc.). * 

 What is the final time, cost, and quality 
expectations for the project? 

Pre-Contract & 

Construction 

4 Board Report FuturePlaces 

Board* 
 Procurement* 

 Contracting* 

 Delivery 

 

Project 

Completion and 
Closure 

5 Board Report FuturePlaces

Board 
 Has the project been completed to our quality 

requirements? 

 Have the accounts been closed off? 

Page 44



28 

 

Stage  Gate
way  

Document Decision-
Maker 

Key Consideration 

 Successful handover to operator? 

For retained assets: 

 Is a plan for ongoing operation and asset 
management in place? 

 Are sufficient resources in place to allow long 
term stewardship of the site to retain and 

increase value? 

Benefits 
Realisation 
(Monitoring and 
Evaluation) 

6 Annual 
Performance 
Report  

Cabinet/ 
Council  

 What were our realised benefits? 

 What did we achieve? 

 What did we learn? 

 What would we do differently? 

*NB. In line with PCR2015 and the Council’s Financial Regulations – this may require Cabinet/Council approval 

or a request to delegate authority will be required at the FBC stage. 

 
The system will provide assurance to the FuturePlaces Board and BCP Council that: 

 Projects are carefully and consistently reviewed at key project stages  

 Projects and programs are delivered to a high standard, on time and to budget 

 Public money is invested in projects aligned to Council objectives and socio-economic 

benefits are achieved.  

 

  

Page 45



29 

 

6 Finance 

An analysis of the underspend by FuturePlaces has been jointly undertaken by FuturePlaces 

and BCP Council Finance Teams.  An underspend of £1.497m has been identified.  Subject 

to final agreement by BCP council, a proportion of this amount will be made available to 

FuturePlaces to fund those FY22/23 activities that formed part of the prior year’s approved 

budget.  In addition, £850,000 of existing Capital project funds can be used to support near 

term requirements.  Finally, the current £400,000 funding facility is available until this business 

plan can be approved.   

In aggregate, these facilities are sufficient to pay for FuturePlaces operations until the 

£8million working facility can be approved and the company remains a going concern. 

 

6.1 Budgetary Pressures 

At inception, FuturePlaces was given a portfolio of 14 sites to consider. As engagement with 

BCP Council has been built, both sides of the commissioning process have recognised that 

there is a wider range of works that BCP Council would like FuturePlaces to undertake.   

This includes a recent request to look at a possible reprovision of the BIC, the station quarters 

in Poole and Bournemouth, and their interaction with intermodal transport options. These 

projects will also aim to assist the green agenda, facilitate land use intensification and aid 

sustainable mobility. Other requests include support for further areas of the Poole waterfront 

to tie in with flood defence and public realm works and various bespoke projects around 

funding options.   

FuturePlaces has, in conjunction with relevant BCP Council colleagues, run an extensive 

engagement campaign, The Big Conversation, engaging with local councillors, residents, 

businesses and stakeholders to build on the Big Plan and ensure that public views about the 

character of place and of the regeneration program are fed into the process at an early stage.  

The emerging place narrative developed with 1HQ highlights the importance to all sectors of 

the community of quality of life, wellbeing, active lifestyles and engagement with the wonderful 

natural assets of the region.  FuturePlaces will build these priorities into its developing 

programme.    

Clearly, additional projects necessarily imply additional costs.  It is this cost pressure that the 

revised budget is designed to address. To date, FuturePlaces has absorbed additional work 

within its cost-base but this additional workload cannot be supported long term from within a 

budget designed to address a smaller project list. 

It should be noted that the incremental costs are not due to over-runs or mission creep on 

extant projects.  FuturePlaces continue to operate at 35% below budget on its operational 

expense and 1% below budget on its enabling works, with no call on contingency funds in 

either case. 

Given the decision points reached, it is now prudent to undertake further works on some of 

the projects and commission works on the new projects commissioned by BCP Council.  The 

total incremental cost of these works is £2.61 million and the breakdown of these costs and 

the revised 2022/34 budget can be found in Confidential Appendix 1. 

Page 46



30 

 

7 Funding Model 

FuturePlaces agreed a budget for costs and expenditure for FY 22/23 with BCP Council during 

October 2021.  FuturePlaces recognises the Council’s change of requirement to associate 

recognition of costs of professional advice and development management services with 

capitalisable projects.  Although it would be more attractive from FuturePlaces’ perspective to 

leave the prior funding arrangement in place, this option has been rejected as unattractive to 

the client, BCP Council. 

To assist BCP Council, FuturePlaces’ shareholder and client, the following funding mechanism 

has been developed.  This will present challenges to FuturePlaces which are extraneous to 

its own invoicing, income recognition accounting requirements – increasing the level of risk 

and potentially challenging the stewardship business model.  

Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice requires that in order for a cost to be taken to the 

Council’s capital account, the Council requires reasonable certainty that a single option for a 

capital project will be undertaken, and a decision is taken to proceed. (From the Council’s 

perspective, the “Capitalisation Event”; from FuturePlaces perspective, it is a trigger for an 

invoicing event).   

The capitalisation approach based on invoicing at the point a single option scheme raises 

particularly acute challenges where the project is complex, has a long-time horizon or has 

multiple components.  

This business plan is based on the need to: 

 Provide a mechanism to fund all project works until a Capitalisation Event occurs.  It is 

proposed that this is done by means of a working capital loan 

 Pay for all aborted projects which do not reach a Capitalisation Event, either because 

they are abandoned as unfeasible or because they are not approved by the Council 

for other reasons. 

 Pay for works commissioned by BCP Council and undertaken by FuturePlaces which 

are not directly attributable to a capitalisable project, such as work on the Big 

Conversation, the Place Potential exercise (which will contribute to the Regeneration 

Strategy and rationale for PWLB funding) wider Council financing and planning issues, 

and the like.  Whilst these workstreams are desirable to the Council, a mechanism 

needs to be found under which they can be paid for. 

 Create a mechanism that integrates with the Council budget but gives FuturePlaces 

the confidence it needs to enter into an agreement to the funding model proposed in 

this section, given that the Capitalisation Event is a decision made by the Council at 

its absolute discretion and which is entirely beyond the control of FuturePlaces.  

 Explicitly recognises that any new projects commissioned and approved by BCP 

Council may need to be separately funded by the Council as being outside of the scope 

of the funding arrangement in this business plan. If the project can be expected to be 

capitalised, to the extent that loan facility headroom is available, the project costs can 

be supported until the capitalisation event occurs.  If loan facility headroom is not 

Page 47



31 

 

available, then consideration would need to be given to increasing the level of working 

capital loan before the project can be progressed. In the case of advisory work, which 

is not associated with a potentially capitalisable project, the Company would have to 

consider whether it was prudent to take on the project without other funding 

arrangements in place. These would be agreed on a case by case basis with the 

Council.  

 Consider what options are available to FuturePlaces if for practical or political reasons 

the Council either delays the point of capitalisation or abandons schemes and how the 

Council then pays for works that it has commissioned. 

 Explicitly recognises that in the first instance any surpluses made by FuturePlaces 

retained on balance sheet to form a funding buffer, or to fund other works that cannot 

be tied explicitly to a capital project.  Since FuturePlaces is 100% owned by BCP 

Council, any cash on FuturePlaces balance sheet remains the property of the Council 

and there is no risk of leakage. 

 

7.1 Working Capital Loan 

The initial challenge that must be addressed is how to fund FuturePlaces workstreams until 

Capitalisation Events are achieved.   

In the case of some projects (for example, Beach Road Car Park, Chapel Lane Car Park, 

Poole Civic Centre, Christchurch Civic Centre, Constitution Hill), it is expected that Outline 

Business Cases (OBC) will be presented during Summer 2022.  These are relatively simple 

projects, and it is anticipated that the proposals will not be long or complex.  In each case, the 

options presented are likely to be to either sell the site or develop using own funds, potentially 

in partnership with a developer subject to market appetite and commercial terms available.  

The desired output from discussion of the Business Case is approval of single option that 

FuturePlaces can move forward with, and a Capitalisation Event for the Council.   

In the case of the more complex, longer-term projects – such as Boscombe, Holes Bay, 

Wessex Fields - FuturePlaces are looking at how the projects can be staged to produce a 

series of capitalisation events for discrete sub-projects each of which can be realised 

independently to maintain cash flow.  For example, a decision to remediate a contaminated 

piece of land is in itself a project that adds value to the land and should be capitalisable, 

irrespective of a further workstream that may still be underway to determine what is to be built 

on that land.    

On larger projects such as the re-provisioning of the BIC this incremental approach will 

probably not be possible.  The capitalisation point will be a decision to move ahead, or not – 

albeit with an acceptance that if prices, markets for product or other factors change, the project 

may need to respond.  It must be recognised that projects of this nature pose a significant 

amplification of risk to FuturePlaces business model.  FuturePlaces will work with BCP Council 

to determine the desirability of taking such projects forward under the proposed funding 

arrangement.  

Page 48



32 

 

All of the above presents the need for a working capital loan that allows FuturePlaces to fund 

its operation until works can be invoiced.  Using the analysis presented at Confidential 

Appendix 1, it can be seen that a facility of at least £6 million under the base case is required.  

Allowing for a degree of prudence, the BCP Council proposed size of £8million is felt to be 

adequate. 

It is therefore proposed and requested that BCP Council increase the size of the current 

£400,000 working capital facility to £8 million, which should be funded by way of a loan.   

It should be emphasised that the difference between these two numbers is not due to either 

cost over runs (in fact, FuturePlaces continues to perform under budget) or mission creep.  All 

of the costs to be incurred would have been necessary to progress the projects and simply 

reflect the decision points that have been reached by the council (for example, the desire to 

have FuturePlaces consider the reprovision of the BIC).  The increment in funding is presented 

in Section 4 above.   

 

7.2 Cost – Plus Charging Model 

There is a preference by BCP Council to fund all invoices from FuturePlaces using capital 

funding where possible instead of revenue funding.  The Council has a variety of capital 

budgets available and the ability to prudentially borrow in order to support and invest in its 

regeneration ambitions. Development advice provided by FuturePlaces that support the 

delivery of a specific capital asset shall be able to be funded via these resources upon a fully 

approved business case by Cabinet/Council.  

The role of the FuturePlaces is effectively that of a wholly owned bespoke advisory body to 

BCP Council. FuturePlaces provides analysis, market knowledge, project inception, 

management, and development expertise together with advice on how to develop real estate 

and support place-making within the BCP area.  Key considerations are not just volume of 

delivery, but also quality, longevity, environmental footprint quality of life, and overall 

contribution towards regeneration. The key question is how do entities that provide services 

of the type offered by FuturePlaces price their work, to provide benchmarking and hence 

demonstrate value for money? 

Many professional services businesses, such as lawyers, accountants, and management 

consultancies, operate to a “rule of thirds” when calculating their invoicing amounts.   

Interestingly, this model is also used by public sector knowledge-based businesses14.  Under 

this model, of the total invoice amount, one third is approximately staff cost, one third is other 

costs and overheads (including external expense) and one third is contribution to profit and 

reserves.  As noted in the document referenced in the footnote, this model is also used in 

publicly funded entities.   

If this model were to be adopted by FuturePlaces and accepted by BCP Council, then so long 

as at least two thirds of the projects by value were approved by BCP Council at the point of 

                                                 
14 See Rule of folklore | Opinion | Law Gazette , See also Legal Action Group Bulletin by Vicky Ling on Public 
Funding 

Page 49

https://www.lawgazette.co.uk/commentary-and-opinion/rule-of-folklore/5049335.article


33 

 

their Capitalisation Event, then in theory FuturePlaces would secure enough funding to pay 

for any remaining projects that were aborted.   

It should be noted that projects may be aborted for a range of reasons: for example, better 

options may present themselves, technologies may change, political priorities may change, 

relative desirability of different types of property may shift over time.  The critical point is that 

the decision to proceed with a single option for a project is outside of the control of 

FuturePlaces: it is a decision for the Council.   This presents a risk that is hard to mitigate and 

manage and is reflected in the company’s risk register FuturePlaces will therefore need to 

fund the cost of any work on these projects from the contribution to reserves, or through an 

alternative back-stop provision. 

There is an additional class of expenses besides aborted projects that will also need to be 

funded from reserves or otherwise.  That is any work that cannot directly be attributed to a 

project, such as work that is not tied to an economic value add at a particular site or other real 

asset that can ultimately be capitalised.  Already, there is work on the Big Conversation, place 

branding, place potential strategy and Council funding structures that is being undertaken or 

supported by FuturePlaces.   Some of these (the Big Conversation, Place Potential exercise) 

are part of a strategic approach to create a collective and well-founded regeneration narrative 

that indirectly supports FuturePlaces delivery and the Council’s corporate objectives and to 

date, have been funded through other funding sources. Other activities, draw upon the 

expertise BCP has brought together within FuturePlaces.  In such cases, FuturePlaces are 

best placed to provide assistance rather than seeking more expensive external opinion at least 

in the first instance. It can be seen that this adds a high degree of complication to the sizing 

of the reserve account that must be built up from margins on invoiced work.  If FuturePlaces 

were to spend one third of its time and expenses on projects of this type, then all site-based 

projects would have to reach a capitalisation event in order for FuturePlaces to be able to fund 

the non-site based projects. If a single project were to fail in this scenario, FuturePlaces would 

not have funds available to finance ongoing operations.    

In order to work with a prudent level of headroom, FuturePlaces could be severely limited in 

the range of ad hoc non-capitalisable projects it could undertake or have to prioritise projects, 

unless agreement can be reached with the council on separate funding for such projects.   The 

Directors will have to consider very carefully the risks of taking on big ticket single event 

capitalisation projects that could take multiple years to define a scheme and before there was 

clarity on whether a capitalisation point would be reached.   

Since it is clearly desirable to BCP Council that it has the ability to access the resources within 

FuturePlaces as it sees fit, it is desirable to put in place some sort of funding provision to 

support these works. 

FuturePlaces has estimated its comparable day rates based on its staffing costs, adjusted for 

a 50% margin and a 6% contribution to corporate overheads to give a proxy for the rate that 

might be charged by an external consultancy.  

 

 

Page 50



34 

 

Job Title FuturePlaces Implied  

Day Rate  

Director/Principal £1090-£1210 

Director/Senior Consultant £477-1090 

Engagement Lead/Project 

Manager 

£477-£803 

Project Staff £233-£477 

   

In addition, it should be noted that the “third to profit and reserves” would be retained by 

FuturePlaces as a Council owned entity, rather than being available to fund external 

shareholder returns or other leakage if comparable fees were paid to an external consultancy.  

This reserve can be used to fund further work for the council, or ultimately if no further work is 

required distributed as a dividend back to the Council. 

 

7.3 Success Fee Model 

Another charging mechanism prevalent in the property sector is for a success fee to be 

charged either as a pre-agreed percentage whether on disposal, introduction of funding or 

another event at which value is crystallised.  Agents’ industry rates vary dependant on market 

conditions and size of transactions. These currently range from 0.8%-1.5%, with lower rates 

generally charge for larger transactions. It is proposed that a fee between 0.8% - 1.25% will 

be is payable to FuturePlaces on completion and will be negotiated dependant on the scale 

and complexity of the transaction. 

In addition, where FuturePlaces have negotiated with a third party to acquire a turnkey solution 

and will be providing development management services it is proposed that a fee is applied. 

This fee will be based on the total development costs of the scheme excluding the land value 

and all finance costs. The fee applied will be between 1.5% - 2.5% and will be negotiated 

dependant on the level of development management services provided through the 

negotiation, acquisition, and delivery of the scheme through to completion.  

The inherent danger in such arrangements is that they are highly risky for the consultant 

(reflected in the high percentage charged) and can introduce perverse incentives to best 

outcomes.  That said there is a clarity to such arrangements that could provide the basis of a 

hybrid charging regime.  As a general principle, FuturePlaces remit is to apply property and 

place-making skills to substantially enhance asset value and overall locational values.  A 

success-based arrangement might be introduced such that on crystallisation of asset value or 

introduction of finance, FuturePlaces benefits from a modest success fee.  This would help to 

build reserves and hence provide a revolving facility to fund further works. 

 

 

Page 51



35 

 

7.4 Use of Reserves 

As noted above, FuturePlaces is wholly owned by BCP Council.  Therefore, any reserves built 

up by FuturePlaces still belong to the Council.  These reserves cannot, under the current 

business plan, be used for any purpose other than paying the agreed costs of the business, 

funding further works for BCP Council or paying a dividend back to the council. There is no 

distribution mechanism to any third party therefore no leakage of funds.  It is anticipated that 

during the current business plan period, there would be no dividend distribution back to the 

Council and any surplus will be used to fund further works or build a prudential reserve on the 

Company’s balance sheet. 

In summary, the primary use of any reserves will be to fund:  

i. Aborted or cancelled projects that BCP Council in its discretion decides not to proceed 

with, or decides to proceed with in another form such that work to date cannot be 

capitalised, 

ii. Works that are not associated with a capitalizable project, such as the works described 

above on council financing, marketing or public engagement. 

iii. New projects that might be identified to FuturePlaces by BCP Council intra-year, on a 

rolling basis, pending capitalisation and invoicing, reducing the need for the working 

capital facility in the future for any incremental works. 

The possibility remains open that after all such works have been fully paid for and provision 

made for future works that may not be invoiced, the Directors could in consultation with the 

shareholder BCP Council consider whether any retained reserves should be retained for future 

investment or returned to the shareholder by way of a dividend.   

At this time, the expectation is that any reserves will be used to fund further and ongoing 

regeneration of the BCP area.  As such, dividend distributions are not reasonably foreseeable.  

However, if the Council decides that it does not wish to continue its program of urban 

regeneration, or wishes to continue it at a slower pace, then a decision could be made to 

distribute any excess funds to BCP Council as shareholder by way of a dividend.  

 

7.5 Backstop provisions 

There are a number of identifiable risks to FuturePlaces if there were a blanket agreement to 

only invoice subject to Council consent for works after a Capitalisation Event.  As set out 

above, it is not in FuturePlaces control when or indeed if the Council will determine to proceed 

with a project.  Since this cannot be determined by the Company, nor mitigated against, it 

would be impossible for the directors to be confident that there was a route to sufficient 

revenue that would allow the Company to repay the working capital facility.  

From BCP Council’s perspective, there is a desire to accurately right-size its revenue and 

capital account budgets for the current and next financial periods.  It is inefficient and wasteful 

to have over-sized budgeted amounts sitting on the Council balance sheet which may never 

be used, however prudential accounting may require a provision to be made for some degree 

of invoicing of uncapitalisable amounts.  All FuturePlaces works have been commissioned by 

Page 52



36 

 

the Council and there needs to be a clear route available for the Council to pay for them.  The 

advisability and size of any provision is a matter for BCP Council and is beyond the scope of 

this document.   

An alternative, as noted above, is to agree that ad hoc work on non capitalisable projects that 

occur intra-year could be funded on a pay-as you-go basis by the Council from its revenue 

account or other approved funding sources, as most appropriate.   

 

7.6 Size of Working Capital Facility Requested 

Given the budget refresh in Section 4, FuturePlaces has given considerable thought to the 

size of working capital facility needed to support its business activities as currently 

commissioned.  As explained above, this is a process that needs a number of assumptions to 

be made regarding matters that are outside of the control of FuturePlaces. 

The key assumptions that need to be made and the values used in this analysis are as follows: 

(i) Timing of Capitalisation Events – Clearly, the longer each project spends being funded 

using the working capital facility, the larger the facility will need to be.  If a capitalisation 

event can be achieved faster, then any expenditure after that point can be invoiced and 

the working capital loan partially repaid (or future drawdowns may be deferred or not 

required as the cash receipt is used to cashflow the next wave of activity), but the spend 

from that point on can also invoiced.  The assumed timing for the capitalisation event of 

each project is detailed above in Section 3 above. 

Any delay in the approval of a capitalisation event (either because further work is required, 

or because the Council wish to cancel a project or change the deliverable) will push this 

timetable back. 

(ii) Timing of payment following a capitalisation event – Rightly, once a proposal to select a 

single option is presented to Council, there will be a period of scrutiny and debate leading 

to a decision.  Given the size of the projects under consideration, most if not all of these 

will require a decision by the full Council.  There is a lead-time of approximately 3 months 

for all consultations, publication periods and gateway stages to be met between 

submission of the proposal and decision.  Assuming a positive decision, an invoice then 

needs to be raised and processed, which could take up to 30 days.  The model is prudent 

and therefore assumes 4 months from submission of option to payment of invoice. 

(iii) Amount invoiced – As explained above at 6.2, the working assumption is that the pro-rata 

cost of FuturePlaces overhead and external enabling works would together be assumed 

to be approximately 2/3rds of total invoiced amount, with a contribution to reserves and 

ability to cover un-invoiced costs made by the remaining third. 

(iv) Buffer against cancelled projects - If all projects proceeded to capitalisation as planned, 

and there were no requests for ad hoc project work by BCP Council, then there would be 

no need for an additional buffer.  However, prudence and good management practice 

require that a downside should be considered. In order to do this, FuturePlaces have 

assumed that four projects from the current project list fail to reach a capitalisation event 

and thereafter 15% by value of any new projects taken on by FuturePlaces fail to reach 

Page 53



37 

 

capitalisation.  This is a necessary assumption in order to provide a capacity to absorb a 

reasonable level of written off business.   

As can been seen in the projection below at Figure 7.6, using the above assumptions the 

working capital facility would have a peak utilisation of just under £5.4 million.  It is therefore 

considered that, allowing for a degree of conservatism, the size of facility proposed by BCP 

Council of £8 million is appropriate. 

  
Figure 7.6 
 
It can be seen that the company can, under the above scenario, repay its working capital  

facility plus accrued interest by Q1 24/25.  However, in the modelled scenario the assumption 

is that BCP Council then commissions work on further projects from FuturePlaces, which 

necessitate a redrawing of the working capital facility.  This further drawing and interest is 

repaid by Q4 26/27.  It is entirely within the gift of BCP Council whether to commission any 

such further work. 

 

 
 

 
  

Page 54



38 

 

8 Communications Strategy 

The communications and marketing strategy will support the FuturePlaces business plan and 

team, by providing proactive communications, to raise our profile nationally, and help engage 

communities locally. 

The communications and marketing strategy is vital in telling the story, attracting inward 

investment, and garnering trust from residents and visitors alike. 

The pioneering municipal stewardship approach to regeneration which BCP Council coupled 

with the scale of the regeneration projects across Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole 

means that there will be wide scale interest from many quarters including Westminster, Homes 

England, and other such high-profile stakeholders. 

 

8.1 Aims 

 To build trust and support locally across Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole through 

targeted audience led communications. 

 To attract inward investment through proactive.  

 To accelerate FuturePlaces led regeneration projects across Bournemouth, Christchurch 

and Poole through better informing stakeholder and partners. 

 To engage with local industry groups to better understand market dynamics, drivers and 
barriers to delivery. 

  
 
8.2 Objectives 

 To raise awareness of FuturePlaces and inspire confidence to invest in Bournemouth, 

Christchurch and Poole. 

 To position Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole as UK leaders in the stewardship 

approach to future regeneration and development. 

 To create and deliver targeted content to position FuturePlaces within central government 

as the UK’s leading urban regeneration company. 

 To gain recognition of the FuturePlaces approach as a leading example of regenerative 

development in the UK and a pioneer on place-making, design quality management and 

stewardship-led development within a local authority context. 

 To achieve   participation   in   consultation   and   engagement   from   local communities 

on a site-by-site basis. 

 To inform the local market to ensure barriers and opportunities to regeneration are 

acknowledged and actioned. 

 

 

Page 55



39 

 

8.3 Audiences 

Creating awareness of FuturePlaces will be vital to the local, national, and international market 

for two reasons: promoting the opportunity, and the pioneering approach to unlocking the 

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole region’s potential. 

To capture the extremely diverse audience-base, our communications and marketing strategy 

will be as ambitious as BCP Council’s Big Plan and be smart to ensure the impact is felt by 

those we target. Therefore, a multi-channel approach will be directed at varying levels. We 

have identified three high level audience segments – investment, local market and community. 

 

8.4 Establishing the Brand 

Our brand has been designed and positioned to stand out in the marketplace and become 

synonymous with Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole. The Company’s corporate image will 

be presented and recognised as a professional, world leading and pioneering brand which 

attracts interest and funding from central government, national and international investors.  

This process is well underway with corporate “look and feel” implemented on all Company 

materials, and the image being presented in all company events and documents. 

  

Page 56



40 

 

9 Risk Management  

Risk Identification, Mitigation and Management is key to the ethos of Stewardship: Risk 

management is not risk elimination particularly over longer timeframes where risks can evolve, 

and new risks present themselves.  In any project risks remain, either because they cannot 

be hedged or because to do so is disproportionately expensive given the consequence. A 

process by which risks are identified and sorted by consequence and probability is a first 

necessary step.  Once this is in hand, then mitigation strategies for those that can be reduced 

or eliminated can be implemented, and management strategies can be put in place for those 

that cannot. All of the risks and mitigants presented in the October 2021 business plan remain, 

with the management plan remaining unchanged.  However, some new risks have been 

identified.  These are discussed below. 

 

9.1 Interpretation of rules for PWLB Funding regarding regeneration activity 

Access to PLWB funding is critical to regenerative activity at BCP and has been adopted as 

the most likely source of capital for development projects.  However, we understand that there 

is a perceived lack of clarity round the interpretation of PWLB rules and guidelines within BCP 

Council.  This potentially presents a barrier to delivery as PWLB is the most attractive, funding 

source available to BCP Council. 

FuturePlaces is in the process of securing a definitive opinion from suitably qualified Counsel.   

9.2 Invoice at point of capitalisation model 

For reasons described in Section 6 above, BCP Council wishes to move to an “invoice at point 

of capitalisation” funding model.  Whilst there are a number of clear benefits to the Council, 

such an arrangement does present incremental risks to FuturePlaces.  Since FuturePlaces is 

owned by the Council, ultimately those risks belong to the Council.  The issues are well 

rehearsed at Section 6 above.  Ultimately, it is a matter for the Council as shareholder to 

determine if these risks are acceptable.  Given that the power to mitigate them rests entirely 

with the Council, FuturePlaces will seek early engagement with BCP Council and other key 

stakeholders through its public engagement process, to determine as early as possible any 

potential barriers to the progress of projects through the key decision points.   

 

9.3 Adoption of Stewardship Model 

Whilst there is growing practice of stewardship-led development in the private sector, there is 

limited (though growing) interest and adoption in the public sector.  In order to support its 

forward business planning process, and as a potential mitigant to internal issues around PWLB 

funding, FuturePlaces has commissioned Knight Frank and Castletown Law to inform the 

evolution of the business model and investigate alternative funding methods.  Rettie and Co 

have developed a model designed to increase affordability of housing, whilst at the same time 

giving homebuyers confidence that other stakeholders are bought into the stewardship 

concept.  This is important following the widely reported bad press around ground rents and 

management companies that have very limited mandates. FuturePlaces is in early stage 

Page 57



41 

 

discussions with Rettie and Co to determine the suitability of their model as a mechanism to 

improve affordability within the BCP area.   

Separately, Space Syntax have supported the development of a prudent, stewardship model 

with consideration of how their Integrated Urban Model might be deployed to create a dynamic 

master-planning tool for option and impact testing, and to support demonstration of the inter-

dependencies of an overall Strategic Outline Programme. 

Knight Frank have reported, and their report has been presented to BCP Council, validating 

the adoption of a Stewardship model.  In addition, Homes England have recognised 

FuturePlaces as a thought leader in the development of quality urban regeneration.   

9.4 Changing Economic Circumstances 

Latest Bank of England forecasts suggest that what was initially reported to be a “transitory” 

spike in inflation is becoming more systemic.  In particular, many commentators are suggesting 

that it is no longer to treat the current inflation as transitionary.  The effects of COVID, the 

current geopolitical situation and a step change in the nature of demand for energy combined 

with the ongoing tight labour market all mean that expected reduction in material and labour 

costs are not flowing through to sites.  Accurately costing development and hence assessing 

viability is going to become increasingly challenging, to an extent not seen in a generation.    

However, the need for housing and other regeneration remains.     

FuturePlaces will continue to use the best available data to assess costings as it works up 

proposals for sites, whilst recognising the potential for cost inflation. FuturePlaces has 

sufficient headroom to finance its operations given any reasonably foreseeable inflationary 

scenario (up to 10%).  Any Business Case put to BCP Council will contain the most up to date 

forecast of costs available, together with a scenario analysis of what impact increased costs 

might have on total project costs and economic returns.  Since FuturePlaces does not 

presently have return models for its projects, it is not yet possible to present a full scenario 

analysis.  This will be presented as part of the business case for any projects brought forward 

to Council for approval. 

 

9.5 Capacity of BCP Council departments to take on FuturePlaces related work 

BCP Council, like most public authorities, works in a cash constrained environment.  Sizing of 

Council departments is designed to allow delivery of necessary or forecast services.  As such, 

there is limited excess capacity to take on additional projects.  In the case of FuturePlaces, 

the workload is both “lumpy” and aperiodic.  This is in part why the Company has elected to 

adopt the ultimately lower cost model of outsourcing specialist functions that cannot be 

deployed continuously – it is cheaper that way than having specialist full time staff who cannot 

be fully deployed in their specialist field.   Where FuturePlaces requires additional specialist 

resource which cannot immediately be found within the Council (or, where a specialism is 

required that cannot be found within the Council), a decision needs to be made whether it is 

reasonable to buy in resource from outside.  In the case of large capital projects, the costs of 

Page 58



42 

 

delay can be considerable15.  For this reason, FuturePlaces will work to ensure that all service 

level agreements with BCP Council contain provision for outsourcing where necessary. 

 

9.6 Timing of Council Approvals under new business model 

As noted above in Section 6.6, there is risk to the business and hence to its owner BCP Council 

if it is not possible to reach agreement on projects to the anticipated timetable.  Although 

assumptions that are believed to be conservative are made, it is not in the Company’s gift to 

make the decision to proceed:  That is a decision for the Council.  Should more than 50% of 

projects fail to reach approval within 2 years, there is a risk that the Company will run out of 

funding.  At this stage, discussions would have to be held with the shareholder whether it still 

had appetite to proceed with regeneration. 

 

9.7 Public Scrutiny of FuturePlaces staff 

As a public sector owned company, a degree of public scrutiny is reasonable, desirable and 

expected by FuturePlaces management. Indeed, the FuturePlaces management team 

welcome the regular and detailed scrutiny of project proposals and business processes by 

Council officers and other stakeholders.  

However, there has been a level of repetitive scrutiny of FuturePlaces staff, often predicated   

on incorrect information presented as “fact”.  There is a risk that should this continue, key staff 

will be lost with attendant costs and loss of skill of the Company.  

 

9.8 Increasing Environmental Regulation 

FuturePlaces has identified compliance with national guidance/regulation on SANGS, nitrates 

and biodiversity net gain as a key challenge to its own and the broad delivery programme.  It 

is important to meet these challenging and important regulations positively and FuturePlaces 

has provided for supporting BCP initiatives in this area to ensure that these are delivered at 

the pace needed to support internal and external regeneration objectives and development 

targets.  Compliance with fabric first and other on-site requirements will produce further cost 

and process hurdles. 

 

9.9 Commercially Sensitive Information Management  

FuturePlaces has access to commercially sensitive information, which is of significant value 

to other market participants.  Much of it is protected by contractual obligations.  As such, the 

control of such information must be carefully managed. 

                                                 
15 To put this in context, before the formation of FuturePlaces, the pipeline of projects was conservatively 

valued at £2.8 bil l ion.  Conservatively assuming an average property yield of 4% across this portfolio, a single 
day’s delay is worth approximately £300,000 in gross income.  Even assuming a gross to net ratio of 10%, it can 
be seen that it is not value for money to delay access to appropriate, timely services. 

Page 59



43 

 

With regard, to information management, BCP Council’s IT will be responsible for ensuring 

that the Company’s systems are secure, and that access can be controlled to strictly 

authorised staff.  All staff have signed an appropriate NDA, reminding them of their 

responsibilities and obligations on a periodic basis and requiring the team to declare conflicts 

of interest which may impact upon the decision to grant access to particular data.  Although 

such an agreement could be embedded in an employment contract, the real value is in the 

“nudge” and “reminder” of resigning periodically. 

All engagement with the press and digital channels will be managed by the communications 

and engagement team, in coordination with the BCP Council Communications Department to 

minimise risk of inadvertent data loss and reputational issues. 

 

9.10 Conflicts of Interests 

All employees are required to declare any conflicts of interest and adhere to the Company’s 

conflict of interest policy.   Where necessary, staff with the potential for conflicts will be placed 

behind suitable information management protocols isolating them from information and 

decision-making processes where an allegation of conflict could be made. 

All other risks and mitigants remain as previously described in the October 2021 Business 

Plan.  The Risk Register is reviewed regularly by the FuturePlaces Board and mitigation 

strategies put in place where necessary or prudently possible. 

As projects are brought forward, risks and mitigants will be clearly articulated in the business 

cases 

 

  

Page 60



44 

 

Appendix 2: Draft Stewardship Kitemark; Draft Towards Zero Standard; Draft 

Equalities/Perspectives User Experience Checklist. 

The Stewardship Initiative – The Stewardship Kitemark 
 
The Stewardship Initiative (TSI) offers the potential to channel public and private resources 

towards a more sustainable, resilient, economically productive and beautiful built product. 

Beyond the present crisis there will be an acute need to restart the economy and the 

construction of homes within greener, more liveable neighbourhoods will be at the heart of 

this. We propose a pioneering programme of Stewardship-led development that will make an 

immediate and significant impact on the delivery of place making, affordable housing and a 

sustained economic recovery. 

In line with the BBBBC’s recommendations, supporting measures will be provided in return for 

attaining the ‘Stewardship Kitemark’. In ‘Living with Beauty’ the BBBBC identify the four key 

ingredients of successful stewardship as: 

1. The right culture  and people : appointing senior 

leadership who care about delivering the quality agenda. 
2. Good governance : setting the right budget and appraisal processes to 

allow quality; 
3. High standards: through briefing, masterplanning, 

design codes, landscape and sustainability and space 

standards; and 
4. A quality- focused supply chain: procuring professional and delivery 

teams focused on quality. 
 
To translate this into a measurable standard - the Stewardship Kitemark - landowners will be 

required to demonstrate commitment to the following: 

 

S t e w a rds hip  K ite m a rk  D e scr ipt ion  R e fe re nce /  B e ne fit : 

A. Co rp o rat e  c o m m i t m en ts:  

1. O w n e rsh i p  Landowner to maintain an interest in B BBBC Re searc h Re p ort Co st  & 

 land during the project. Ownership, V a lue k ey fi n ding 7 : Long-term 

 participation and partnership lie at investment engenders a better 

 the heart of the Stewardship Model. outcome. Stewardship delivery 

 Landowners will need to models (eg. Homes England’s 

 demonstrate they have a vested Building Lease) maintain a 

 interest in the long-term success of landowner’s commitment to the 

 the project and will put in place the community formed through 

 resource to enforce a design development. 

 compliance regime over time.  

2. Co m m u n i t y  Long-term estate management Long-term management structures 

m an age m e n t  an d  d e si gn   through Community Management such as estate stipulations maintain 

e n fo rc e m e n t  Trust (CMT or equivalent) provided the ‘place’ on behalf of the wider 

 for from the outset with provision for community engendering community 

 funding to maintain quality through support for ‘good growth’. 

 an appropriate community charge B BBBC 10 E n su re  e nfo rc em en t.  
 regime, and to embed stewardship Design quality enforced from the 

 through the establishment of a ‘bottom up’ as well through top 
 Neighbourhood Forum (Parish or down mechanisms. 

Page 61



45 

 

 Town Council) and through a  

 Neighbourhood Plan and  

 Neighbourhood Development Order.  

S t ewardsh ip K it emark D e sc rip tio n R e f eren ce/  B en efit : 

B. D esign  p ro c ess c o m m it m en t s:  

1 . L an d sc ap e & t o w n sc ape 

c h arac t er  assessm en t  

A landscape and townscape character 

assessment that encourages 
communities to record and assess 
what they have, ahead of identifying 
what they want to inform the design 

development and maximise place-
potential 

B BBBC P olic y P ro po sal  4 . Discovering 

local beauty will ensure that development is 
contextually appropriate 

2. Tr ip ar t it e Br iefin g An iterative three-way briefing 
process involving the community, 
stakeholders (including key council 

departments) and the development 
team to establish a ‘Place Making 
Brief’ to establish key objectives. 

B BBBC P olic y P ro po sal  11 : Ensure public 
engagement is wide, deep and early 

2 . Co - c reat ive d esign  
p ro c ess 

The site masterplan has been 
designed through a co-creative 
process such as enquiry by design or      
charrettes. 

BBBBC 11 en sure pu blic  [ and st akeh old er ] 
e n gagemen t using tried and tested tools such 
as EbD 

3. L o c alised  m o d el d esign  
c o d e 

Create a locally distinctive design code 
based on the National Model Design 
Code. 

B BBBC P o l icy  P rop osal 7 / 
‘ P lan n in g  fo r  t h e Fu t u re p ara 

15 . Enhances local distinctiveness, style and 
character creating a sense of belonging. 

4. D esign  en fo rc em en t   Design quality criteria built into 

partner agreements, sign off at 
practical completion and the release     
of land 

Imposition of design quality control through 

contract as well as through planning. 

C. D esign  q u alit y  c o m m it m en ts:  

1 . St reet  h ierarc h y  Streets to be compliant with the 
Government’s Manual for Streets (or 
Designing Streets in Scotland) and 
respond to popular precedents from 
the local area captured in the design 

code. 

B BBBC 28 Create h ealth y st reet s 
fo r  p eo p le Produce a 
legible hierarchy of routes that puts     pedestrians, 
cyclists and public transport first. 

2. W alkab le 
n eigh b o u rh o o ds  

Mixed uses distributed such that 

homes are able to access local 

servicing within a 10 minute walking 

isochrone. 

Walkability criteria is NPPF 

requirement for sustainable 

development / Healthy Cities 

objectives. 

 

S t e w ard sh ip  K ite m ark  D e sc r ip t io n  R e fe ren c e/  Be n ef it:  

 
3 . Mix ed  u ses 

A minimum of [0.75, or matrix to 
relate target to context] full-time 

equivalent jobs for every house built 

through the provision of a diverse mix 
of small, medium and large 

employment spaces. Community 

Management Trust to have a Grants 
Pool to support community 

development and to encourage jobs 

for local communities. 

Diverse employment spaces, local       retail 
and leisure facilities build sustainable, 

walkable, mixed-use communities 

supporting trip containment, 
resilience, and social  interaction. 

Page 62



46 

 

C. D e si gn  q u al i t y  c o m m it m en t s (c o n t d ):  

4 . L an d sc ap e an d  Nat u ral 
e n v i ro n m e n t  

Achieve a Green Space Factor of 
[insert matrix to relate GSF to 

B BBBC P o lic y P roposal 2  : Expect net 
gain, not just ‘no net harm’. 

 context] 

Secure proportionate and 

appropriate biodiversity net gain in 

line with the Environment Bill. BNG  
to be delivered either on or offsite 

eg. Through adjacent regenerative 

land management, strategic green 
infrastructure or via Habitat Banks. 

S e e  BBBBC P o lic y  P rop o sa ls 30 an d 

3 1  . Ecology and the natural environment 
to be enhanced providing public amenity 

space and enhanced biodiversity to 

improve social connectivity and well-
being. 

NPPF requirement for sustainable 

development and UK Government 

 Where possible, one tree planted Carbon Net Zero by 2050. 

 within the development for every 
house ideally at forest scale, adhering 

with the design code’s selection of 
appropriate species and covering 

maintenance cost via community 

management regime. 

Delivering the Government’s 25 year 

Environment Plan through environmental 
net gain. 

 Integrate the masterplan to connect 

with surrounding communities (in an 
urban context) or farmland, footpaths 

and woodland. Where possible 
incorporate areas of allotments and 

productive land within or adjacent to 
the development. 

 

5 . En ergy  an d  reso u rc e Water, waste, and energy 

infrastructure designed to minimise 

NPPF requirement for sustainable 

development and UK Government 

S t eward ship K it emark  D e sc rip tio n R e ferenc e/ B en efit:  

 impacts on the environment. For 

example, minimise water 
consumption in the home to [110] 
litres per person per day, all street 
lighting meets the dark skies 
initiative. Where possible absorb 

storm and surface water on-site. 

Carbon Net Zero by 2050. 

6 . Co m m u n it y  
in frast ru c t ure 

Community infrastructure planned in 
from the outset relative to local need 
identified through the briefing 
process. 

Creation of balanced, sustainable 
neighbourhoods. To conform with the NPPF 
requirement for sustainable         development and 
the National Design Guide 

D. Fu n d in g St ew ard ship  
  

On e p er  c en t  for  St ew ard ship  One percent of house sold values to 
fund stewardship support and 
compliance via The Stewardship 

Institute, Neighbourhood Planning 
(A.2 & 3. above) 

To support a financially sustainable     stewardship 
model. 

(Source: 1 The Stewardship Initiative) 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny 

 

Report subject  Bournemouth Development Company LLP Winter Gardens 
Scheme – Project update 

Meeting date  16 June 2022 

Status  Public Report  

Executive summary  Bournemouth Development Company LLP (“BDC”) is a joint 
venture between BCP Council and MUSE Developments Limited a 
subsidiary of Morgan Sindall Group plc. 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the current 
position of the Winter Gardens scheme. 

 

Recommendations That Overview and Scrutiny Place Committee review this update 
report and provide any advice or recommendations to Cabinet as 
they see fit. 

Reasons for 
recommendations 

Whilst no Cabinet decision is contemplated at this time, the 
committee has requested an update report on this project.  

Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Philip Broadhead, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, 
Economy and Strategic Planning. 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Sarah Longthorpe, Director of Delivery Regeneration 

Martin Tiffin, Town Centre Vision Programme Leader 

Wards  Bournemouth Town Centre  

Classification  For Update  
Ti t l e:   

Winter Gardens Scheme content 
 

1. The consented scheme consists of 378 new homes, (a mixture of 1,2, and 3 bed 
apartments) 5,600 m2 of leisure/café/restaurant/retail/commercial space enhanced 
public realm and a 552 space car park, for public (225 spaces) and residential (327 
spaces) use. This was predicated on a Gross Development Value (GDV) of £150m. 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



2. A site plan is detailed in appendix 1. 
 
Summary of previous Cabinet/Council Approvals  
 

3. In October 2015, Bournemouth Borough Council approved the Winter Gardens 
Site Development Plan (SDP). Following four years of detailed design, in March 
2019 BDC secured planning permission for a residential led, mixed-use scheme 
worth an estimated £150 million GDV on the site of the former Winter Gardens 
Concert Hall and the surrounding area.   

4. On 12 February 2020, Cabinet received an updated report on the scheme and 
approved the following: 

 the amendment of the existing £3.4m loan for the purchase of the Exeter 
Road site to an “Additional Council Finance loan note” 

 an increase in the term of the long-term lease from 150 years to 250 years 
(or whatever is market appropriate) 

 an increase to the “Advanced Sum” budgets 

 a change to the “Option Execution Date” to 3 years after the date of planning 
consent.  

5. A subsequent Cabinet Report, dated 27 May 2020, sought and received approval 
for the following decisions: 

 up to a further £7.6m Additional Council Finance, less the Site Lease Value.   

 the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) to be updated in 2021/22 to include 
£304k per annum (plus interest) for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
associated with this Additional Council Finance. 

 the purchase of 123 Private Rented Sector (PRS) homes and the 225 space 
public car park elements of the Winter Gardens Scheme, from the 
Bournemouth Development Company LLP.  

 the Corporate Property Officer, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, to 
agree the detailed [contract provisions]. 

 the grant of a 50-year lease of the PRS elements to Seascape Homes and 
Property Limited on terms to be agreed by the Corporate Property Officer, in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer and; 

 the MTFP to be updated in 2021/22 to take account of the net loss of income 
attributable to the redevelopment of the Winter Gardens car park, totalling 
£743,200.  

 
Project timeline to date 

Date Key Milestone 

October 2015 BDC Site Development Plan approved by Bournemouth Borough 
Council Cabinet. 

Page 70



August 2017 Exeter Road properties acquired to facilitate comprehensive 
redevelopment of the site.  

September 2017 Submission of planning application. 

March 2019 Planning permission granted (subject to SANG condition). 

May 2020 BCP Council Cabinet approval to acquire elements of proposed 

scheme. 123 Build to rent homes and 225 public car parking 
spaces. 

March 2020 COVID-19 Pandemic  

September 2020 Planning Minor Material Amendment approver to secure additional 
homes and construction cost efficiencies. 

November 2020 Homes England confirm central government grant funding is 
unavailable for this scheme 

August 2021 Hicks Farm SANG application approved. 

October 2021 Demolition works commenced on Exeter Road properties, 
planning permission implemented. 

December 2021 Planning Non-Material Amendment approved to enable £7m 
target on construction costs savings. 

July 2022 BCP Council Cabinet to consider opportunity/benefits of 

redeveloping site alongside adjacent BIC/Winterbourne Hotel 
sites to provide enhanced exhibition/conference/event facilities 
within a mixed-use development. 

 
Key impacts 
 

6. The global Covid-19 pandemic from March 2020 has impacted this project timeline 
significantly, the impact of this along with Brexit as highlighted in paragraph 18 below 
has disrupted the construction materials and labour supply chain and resulted in high 
levels of construction price inflation. 
 

7. Whilst house prices have continued to rise across the UK at an unprecedented 
rate, this has not kept pace with construction inflation. The medium-term impact 
of COVID-19 on the residential build to rent market is unknown at this stage. The 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) have issued guidance to its 
valuers highlighting that less weight can be attached to previous market evidence 
for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. Consequently, less 
certainty and a higher degree of caution will be attached to valuations than would 
normally be the case. Given the unknown future impact that COVID-19 and the 

Page 71



long-term supply-chain challenges might have on the real estate market, RICS 
has recommend that valuations are kept under frequent review. 

 
8. It took over 18 months to secure the necessary planning approvals to unlock delivery 

of the site.  The main Winter Gardens application was submitted in September 2017, 
and whilst planning for this project was granted in March 2019, it was conditional 
upon many items, including the approval of a suitable SANG provision.  This 
condition affected a number of other town centre residential applications.  A second 
application to deliver this SANG at Hicks Farm was approved in August 2021, 
however, there remain other SANG-related conditions that need to be satisfied.  
 

9. Throughout 2020 BDC was in discussions with Homes England (HE) as it was hoped 
they would secure a circa £5m grant from Central Government that was available to 
support the delivery of infrastructure to enable projects to progress. However, despite 
reasonable confidence and detailed discussions with Homes England during 2020, 
HE subsequently confirmed that the funding programme would end in March 2021.  
As the grant eligible works at the Winter Gardens would not be complete for the 
Local Authority to claim against until after March 2022, this funding programme 
eligibility was unable to be met and therefore was not appropriate.  
 

10. Homes England did suggest that alternative grant programmes might come on 
stream, however nothing has subsequently been formally launched to date. 
 

Current Status 
 

11. The Winter Gardens project costs, as with all project costs are projected to a point 
and only become fixed and certain at contractual certainty.  As the project proceeds 

through its development phases (Feasibility, Planning, Detailed Design etc) 
projections are used to inform decisions as to whether to proceed to the next phase.  

 

12. In December 2020 BDC completed the detailed design and procurement of an 
indicative cost plan from VINCI which was £12m over the £104m previous cost 

estimate. It was the intention for the contract with VINCI to be agreed on fixed price 
basis once full detailed design had concluded, and the contractor had procured its 

supply chain.  
 

13. In May 2021 BDC undertook a high-level review of the viability to ascertain the 

impact of the combination of the above issues and identify the movement against the 
reported May 2020 position. 

 
14. It identified several areas of pressure totalling a variance against initial project costs 

and values of c£18m including; 
 

 Reduced scheme revenue: the sale of additional car park spaces to the 
Council for public use and the benefit of house price inflation was offset by  

o a higher proportion of the apartments being offered as build to rent at 
a discount to market sale value;  

o the loss of the government grant; and  
o reduced commercial rental income and a higher yield to reflect the 

immediate impact of Covid-19 on the commercial leisure sector. 

Page 72



 Increased construction costs due to inflation and providing additional public 
parking. 

 Increase in professional fees to cover NHBC warranty increases, BREEAM 
requirement for commercial units, legislative changes and increased focus on 

build quality, fire safety. 

 Increase sales and marketing costs to reflect change in mix, allowance for 

tenant incentives in the form of rent-free period and capital contributions to 

commercial units. 

 Increase finance costs due to protracted delivery programme and higher 

scheme costs. 
 

15. BDC has continued to work on the scheme deliverability and identified possible 
amendments to the design including reconfiguring the public car parking and £7m of 

construction value engineering. Due to the nature of these changes an amendment 

to the planning application was submitted to realise the benefit of this construction 
value engineering.   

 
16. BDC has recently given consideration to changing the residential mix of the scheme 

and alternative finance options including forward fund and regeneration leases. This 
option would require the Council to enter into a regeneration lease in return for 

receiving rental income, with a liability to pay a proportion of the base rent to an 
investor. The Council would then acquire the elements for a peppercorn at the expiry 

of the lease. These options would result in a requirement for the Council to 

acquire/forward fund elements or use its covenant to secure the development. Any 
changes would need further due diligence and scrutiny. To date, this due diligence 

and scrutiny has not commenced as it is proposed that the wider redevelopment of 
this area is considered. 

 
17. Following changes and restrictions to the lending terms for local authorities who wish 

to access Public Work Loan Board (PWLB) loans which came into force on 26 

November 2020 BCP FuturePlaces is in the process of obtaining external legal 
advice on the application of (PWLB) funding for regeneration schemes that contain a 

mix of uses via BCP FuturePlaces. This will include consideration of alternative 
funding mechanisms available in the marketplace. 

 
18. It was expected that post BREXIT and the lifting of COVID 19 restrictions, the 

manufacture and supply of materials and labour would return to more normal trading 
conditions, with more balanced supply and demand and less price volatility.    

However, much uncertainty remains, with the ongoing impact of the conflict in the 
Ukraine continuing to effect energy and materials markets across the globe, with 

continued material and labour prices and rising interest rates.  

 

19. In order to assess the current impact and inform a Development Appraisal an 

updated cost plan and an independent review of income and costs would need to be 
undertaken. 

 
20. In light of the above, BDC recognises in the current environment the challenge of 

delivering the consented scheme.  

Page 73



Current Planning Status 

21. In September 2021 Cabinet approved decisions to enable planning permission to be 

secured and work to proceed the preparation of the site for development. 
 

22. In October 2021 demolition commenced on the Exeter Road properties and the 
adjacent Council owned Valentino’s Restaurant. The properties were vacant and had 

become a magnet for anti-social behaviour and vandalism.  
 

23. As a result of this site preparation and demolition the planning consent has been 

deemed implemented. However, there remain a number of planning conditions that 
the developer will need to satisfy, including outstanding SANG conditions to be 
satisfied by the Council. 

Summary of BCP Council Financial position 

24. In February 2020, Cabinet approved a £3.4m loan to support the acquisition of land 
adjacent to the Winter Gardens, furthermore in September 2021 an Officer Decision 

Record approved a £340k loan to fund the completion of building decommissioning 
and demolition work on properties at Exeter Road. Both of these have been 

transacted in full. 
 

25. Additionally, the Council has approved other commitments. In May 2020 Cabinet 

agreed to provide an Additional Council Finance Loan of £7.6m to BDC and to invest 
£32.7m in the Private Rented Sector (PRS) and £11.8m in the Car Parking elements 

of the overall scheme. These decisions are subject to the ongoing due diligence 
regarding the overall scheme's viability and have not been transacted. 

 
26. As originally detailed in the “2021/22 Budget Monitoring at Quarter 3” report to 

Cabinet on 9 February 2022, the Council has included a provision of £5 million of 
potential losses in connection with the Winter Gardens Scheme. The Council is 
making the provision as a result of on-going viability demands relating to the Winter 
Gardens project due to the risk of the project not proceeding. MUSE Development 
Ltd its joint venture partner have also recognised their share in their financial 
statements. 
 

27. The May 2020 investment decisions form part of the already approved capital and 

borrowing strategies of the Council. However, as it stands the Council has no 
unallocated debt headroom against its £855m approved debt ceiling. The MTFP 

update report presented on the 22 June Cabinet agenda makes a request to the 
Audit & Governance Committee and then Council to extend the debt limit further. 

Treasury Management is within the Audit & Governance Committee’s terms of 
reference. 

 

28. It is also important to note that whilst BDC have held discussions with Homes 
England and other third-party funders at this point no third-party funding has been 
secured for the project. 

Summary of legal implications  

 

Page 74



29. This is an update report and is for noting. As such there are no particular legal issues 
arising at this stage. Based on the information provided to the Committee however 
recommendations maybe made for further consideration by Cabinet or Full Council 
as appropriate.  

 
Consideration of Meanwhile/Temporary uses for Site 

30. In February 2022 the Council sought the appointment of agents to market the 

opportunity for temporary/meanwhile uses on the site. Sibbett Gregory were 

subsequently appointed as the marketing agent. 
 

31. This site is currently being marketed for potential leisure, hospitality and retail uses. 
A short to medium term lease will be offered subject to compliance with the BDC 

option agreement and all offers will be subject to the tenant seeking the necessary 
consents including planning. 

 

32. It is hoped that the market will come forward with engaging meanwhile uses to 
provide short term economic and regeneration benefits. 

Wider Development opportunity - BCP FuturePlaces 

33. When BCP FuturePlaces was formed in 2021 BDC had already secured a consented 

mixed use residential scheme for the Winter Gardens site, so it initially considered 
the scheme from a place making potential and how the street scene of the 

surrounding area could be improved.  
 

34. BCP FuturePlaces is currently considering the connectivity between the Winter 
Gardens site and the potential future uses of the Bournemouth International Centre 
(BIC) site and rather than develop out in isolation to see the benefit of having a 

master plan for a wider redevelopment area. A plan detailing the potential wider 
redevelopment area is shown in appendix 2. 

 
Key elements to be considered include; 

 Reprovisioning of Conference and exhibition (CONFEX) element of BIC within 

the Winter Gardens scheme to include seminar hall that can double as music 

venue with state of the art break out and streaming/production facilities;  

 Optimisation of waterfront BIC site for high quality hotel, apart-hotel and 

residential scheme with ground and upper floor elements to provide public 

spaces, related commercial, leisure and food & beverage.  

 Reprovision of large-scale events space – locational and opportunity analysis 

in process. Interaction with seafront & Bournemouth ARC. 

35. BCP FuturePlaces’ new business plan, which is due for consideration at the June 
2022 Cabinet, will outline the project scope in more detail, and an outline business 

case is expected at the end of 2022. 
 

Page 75



36. Both BCP FuturePlaces and BDC are committed to supporting the Council’s Big Plan 
and delivering viable schemes for Bournemouth. 

Background papers 

Appendix 1 – Site plan 

Appendix 2 – Potential wider redevelopment area plan 

Appendix 1 - Site plan 

Page 76



Appendix 2 – Potential wider redevelopment area plan

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Suggested Place Forward Plan  

 

 Severe Weather Protocol (Homeless)  

 

 BCP Future places Ltd – Regeneration update suggest six monthly updates  
 

 South Part of Beach Road Car Park  
 

 Western Gateway Subnational Transport Body (STB) - Strategic Transport 

Plan 

 

 Bereavement Services Business Plan Update  
 

 Bournemouth development company business plan  
 

 Review of Fire Breaks 

 

Suggested Items – possible working groups to be set up  

 

 Tree strategy Working Group – Commencement needs to fit in with the 

proposed development of green spaces policy (was advised summer to 

Autumn 2022) 
 

 Enforcement Working Group – suggested date for work to commence 

September (potential joint working group spanning ‘Corporate & Community’ 

and ‘Place’ O&S Committees depending on breadth of scope) Andy  
 

 Severe Weather Protocol (Homeless)  

  

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Request for consideration of an issue by Overview and Scrutiny 

 

 

Please complete all sections as fully as possible 

1. Issue requested for scrutiny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Desired outcome resulting from Overview and Scrutiny engagement, 

including the value to be added to the Council, the BCP area or its 

inhabitants. 

 

 

 

Guidance on the use of this form: 

This form is for use by councillors and members of the public who want to request 

that an item joins an Overview and Scrutiny agenda.  Any issue may be 

suggested, provided it affects the BCP area or the inhabitants of the area in some 

way.  Scrutiny of the issue can only be requested once in a 12 month period. 

The form may also be used for the reporting of a referral item to Overview and 

Scrutiny by another body of the council, such as Cabinet or Council. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receiving the request will make an 

assessment of the issue using the detail provided in this form and determine 

whether to add it to its forward plan of work.   

They may take a variety of steps to progress the issue, including requesting more 

information on it from officers of the council, asking for a member of the overview 

and scrutiny committee to ‘champion’ the issue and report back, or establishing a 

small working group of councillors to look at the issue in more detail.   

 

If the Committee does not agree to progress the issue it will set out reasons for 

this and they will be provided to the person submitting this form.  

 

More information can be found at Part 4.C of the BCP Council Constitution, under 

procedure rules 2.4-2.9 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s25674/Part%204%20-

%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf 

 

 

 

Page 81

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s25674/Part%204%20-%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s25674/Part%204%20-%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf


 

 

3. Background to the issue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Proposed method of scrutiny  - (for example, a committee report or a 

working group investigation) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Key dates and anticipated timescale for the scrutiny work 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Notes/ additional guidance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document last reviewed – January 2022 

Contact – democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

Page 82

mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


CABINET FORWARD PLAN – 1 MAY 2022 TO 31 AUGUST 2022 

(PUBLICATION DATE – 26 April 2022) 
 

 

What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

Joint Archive 
Service - 
Revised Inter-
Authority 
Agreement 

To update the existing 
IAA to reflect Local 
Government 
Reorganisation and to 
streamline and 
modernise its 
governance 
arrangements 

No Cabinet 

25 May 2022 

All Wards The Joint 
Archives 
Advisory Board 
(JAAB) 

Scheduled 
advisory board 
meeting 

Matti Raudsepp Open 

 

Fly-tipping and 
Fly-Posting 
Enforcement 
Pilot Review 

To update members 
and provide 
recommendations for 
the future regarding the 
fly-tipping and fly-
posting enforcement 
service currently 
provided by WISE 

No Cabinet 

25 May 2022 

   Matthew King Open 

 

P
age 83



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Baiter Sluice 
Channel 
Renewal 

The engineered 
channel at Baiter 
Harbourside Park 
which allows water to 
flow between the Poole 
Park Lagoon and 
Parkstone Bay has 
come to the end of its 
serviceable life. The 
sluice channel is 
presently a safety 
concern, and has been 
cordoned off except for 
non-motorised access. 
The purpose of this 
report is to request that 
Cabinet allocates 
funding in line with the 
specialist report and 
Officer 
recommendations, to 
progress the design 
through to pre-
construction, and 
subsequently 
construction to: replace 
the sluice channel; 
upgrade the sluice 
channel; and, improve 
the localised drainage 
system at Keyhole 
Bridge (subject to 
appropriate consents). 

Yes Cabinet 

25 May 2022 

Parkstone; 
Poole Town 

The 
Environment 
Agency, Natural 
England, Marine 
Management 
Organisation, 
Poole Harbour 
Commissioners, 
Wessex Water, 
Network Rail, 
BCP FCERM 
Inland Flood 
Risk Manager, 
BCP Parks 
Operations 
Team, BCP TCF 
cycle and 
footway 
improvements 
delivery team 

 Peter Christie Open 

 

P
age 84



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Our Museum: 
Poole Museum 
Redevelopment 
Programme 

Update on Poole 
Museum development 
programme, agreement 
for additional CIL and 
prudential borrowing 
proposal and 
confirmation of 
timetable for accessing 
both. 

Yes Cabinet 

25 May 2022 
 

Council 

12 Jul 2022 

Poole Town   Alison Smith, 
Michael Spender 

Open 

 

         

Home to School 
Transport 

This comes back to CS 
O and S and Cabinet 
post consultation (pre 
consultation reports to 
CS O and S and 
Cabinet in Sept) 

No Children's 
Services 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 

Committee 
7 Jun 2022 

 
Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

All Wards   Rachel Gravett, 
Sarah Rempel 

Open 

 

P
age 85



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

BCP 
Futureplaces 
Ltd - 
Regeneration 
update 

To seek approval to a 
revised funding 
structure and updated 
Company Business 
Plan. 

No Cabinet 
22 Jun 2022 

 
Council 

12 Jul 2022 

All Wards   Sarah Longthorpe Open 

 

BCP Council 
Cemeteries 
Rules & 
Regulations 
adoption 

To present to and be 
adopted by Cabinet a 
harmonised set of 
Cemeteries Rules & 
Regulations for BCP 
Council, in accordance 
with the local 
Government Act 1972 
and the Local 
Authorities Cemeteries 
Order 1977 

Yes Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

All Wards   Andy McDonald Open 

 

Transforming 
Cities Fund End 
of Year Report 

This report is for 
information purposes 
only and not for 
decision. The report 
sets out the spend to 
date following the End 
of Year Report to the 
DfT as part of the DfT 
funding requirements. 

No Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

All Wards   Claire Clark Open 

 

P
age 86



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Merdium Term 
Financial Plan 
(MTFP) Update 

This report: 
Presents the latest 
medium-term financial 
plan (MTFP) of the 
council to reflect 
government 
announcements since 
the February 2021 
budget report and 
updated assumptions. 
Proposes a financial 
strategy to support the 
delivery of a balanced 
budget for 2022/23 
Proposes a budget 
planning process and 
timeline for key 
financial reports. 

No Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

All Wards   Adam Richens Open 

 

LGR Three 
Year Stocktake 

To update Cabinet on 
progress with LGR 

No Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

   Bridget Webber Open 

 

P
age 87



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Potential 
Transfer of Play 
sites and other 
BCP assets to 
Christchurch 
Town Council 

To consider potential 
Transfer of Play sites 
and other BCP assets 
to Christchurch Town 
Council, the terms of 
the council's offer and 
any implications or 
liabilities for the council 
in doing so 

No Cabinet 

22 Jun 2022 

Christchurch 
Town; 

Commons; 
Mudeford, 
Stanpit & 

West 
Highcliffe 

Christchurch 
Town Council 

There is a 
statutory 
process to be 
followed for the 
Disposal of 
Public Open 
Space, which 
will be 
undertaken prior 
to reporting. 

Alan Ottaway Open 

 

Commercialisati
on of Beach Hut 
Assets through 
Special 
Purpose 
Vehicle (SPV) 
Wholly or 
Majority Owned 
by the Council 

To present options for 
approval for 
transferring in-scope 
beach hut assets 
across to an SPV 
subsidiary created by 
the Council as parent 
company. 

Yes Cabinet 
22 Jun 2022 

 
Council 

12 Jul 2022 

 Beach Hut 
Associations 

Engagement 
through 
communications 
with Beach Huts 
Associations 
and attendance 
at Beach Hut 
Association 
AGM's. 

Chris Saunders Open 

 

         

P
age 88



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Support Service 
Contract 2013 

Determine future 
options for the Support 
Services Contract 2013 
- Watson CCS Limited 
which ends on 31 
March 2023. Service 
currently supports in-
house cleansing teams. 

No Cabinet 

27 Jul 2022 

All Wards   Simon Legg Open 

 

P
age 89



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

South Part of 
Beach Road 
Car Park Poole 

Appropriation and 
disposal for housing (in 
accordance with its 
local plan allocation) 
subject to an approved 
and adopted 
Development Brief by 
the Local Planning 
Authority, being in 
place. 

Yes Cabinet 
27 Jul 2022 

 
Council 

13 Sep 2022 

Canford 
Cliffs 

Portfolio holders 
for 
1.Regeneration, 
Economy & 
Strategic 
Planning, 2. 
Tourism,Leisure 
Culture, 
3.Community 
Safety and 4. 
Transport & 
Sustainability. 

The disposal 
approval is 
sought, subject 
to an adopted 
Development 
brief being in 
place, and if 
Cabinet give the 
Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) 
approval to 
consult the 
public on the 
Development 
brief, then all 
portfolio holders 
local residents 
association and 
other interested 
parties from the 
public will have 
an opportunity 
to make 
representations 
through the 
LPA's 6 week 
public 
consultation 
process. 

Irene Ferns Open 

 

P
age 90



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Children's 
Services Early 
Help Offer 

Summary of findings 
and recommendations 
from an ongoing review 
of our current Early 
Help services 

No Cabinet 

27 Jul 2022 

All Wards   Zafer Yilkan Open 

 

         

Bournemouth 
Development 
Company LLP 
Business Plan 

To seek approval for 
the Bournemouth 
Development Company 
Business Plan, extend 
some contractual 
"Option Execution 
Dates" in relation to 
specific sites and 
provide an update in 
relation to the 
independent Local 
Partnerships Review. 

No Cabinet 

28 Sep 2022 

Bournemout
h Central 

  Sarah Longthorpe Open 

 

         

P
age 91



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Christchurch 
Bay and 
Harbour 
FCERM 
Strategy 

Bournemouth, 
Christchurch and Poole 
Council (BCP) and 
New Forest District 
Council (NFDC) are 
working together with 
the Environment 
Agency to produce a 
new strategy to protect 
coastal communities 
from tidal flooding and 
erosion risk. It will 
guide how the frontage 
from Hengistbury Head 
to Hurst Spit, 
encompassing 
Christchurch Harbour, 
will be sustainably 
managed for the next 
100 years. 

No Cabinet 

12 Apr 2023 

Christchurch 
Town; East 
Southbourn
e & Tuckton; 
Highcliffe & 
Walkford; 
Mudeford, 
Stanpit & 

West 
Highcliffe 

Landowners, 
BCP residents, 
businesses, 
organisations, 
BCP services 

Several levels 
of public 
enegagement 
and consultation 
throughout the 
development of 
the Strategy 
between 2021 
and 2023. 

Catherine Corbin, 
Alan Frampton, 
Matt Hosey 

Open 

 

         

P
age 92



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Pay & Reward - 
New Terms and 
Conditions of 
Employment 

To seek approval for 
the Council's new 
terms and conditions of 
employment, including 
new pay and grading 
arrangements. 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

 Proposals have 
been developed 
through a 
process of 
collective 
bargaining with 
recognised 
Trade Unions. 
CMB, directorate 
leadership 
teams and 
employees have 
also been 
consulted at 
various stages 
during the 
project and 
informed the 
development of 
proposals 

 Lucy Eldred, Jon 
Burrows 

Fully exempt 

 

Library Strategy To produce a library 
strategy across all BCP 
libraries and the 
development of 
libraries as 
neighbourhood hubs. 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

    Open 

 

P
age 93



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Adoption of 
Ducking Stool 
Walk, 
Christchurch 

To consider a request 
from Priory Mews 
Management Company 
for BCP Council to 
adopt the land and 
structures forming the 
Public Right of Way 
known as Ducking 
Stool Walk 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

Christchurch 
Town 

Leader of the 
Council (Cllr 
Drew Mellor); 
Portfolio Holder 
(Cllr Mark 
Anderston); 
Ward 
Councillors (Cllr 
Peter Hall and 
Cllr Mike Cox); 

Informal 
consultation to 
inform the 
report 

Alan Ottaway Open 

 

Western 
Gateway Sub-
national 
Transport Body 
(STB)- Strategic 
Transport Plan 

To advise Cabinet of 
the STB's intention to 
adopt its Strategic 
Transport Plan at its 
Board meeting in 
December 2020 
subject to agreement of 
all its consituent 
members. This is also 
subject to the outcome 
of an active 
consultation period 
which will close on 31st 
July 2020. 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

All Wards Portfolio Holders 
for Transport 
and 
Infrastructure 
and Environment 
and Climate 
Change. 

A public 
consultation is 
active until 31 
July 2020 
https://westerng
atewaystb.org.u
k/ 

Julian McLaughlin, 
Ewan Wilson 

Open 

 

P
age 94



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Children's 
Safeguarding 
Arrangements 

To present reviewed 
arrangements 

No Cabinet 
 

Children's 
Services 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

Dates to be 
confirmed 

 

 

All Wards   Rachel Gravett Open 

 

Bournemouth 
Learning Centre 
conversion to a 
Special School 
Campus - 
Capital budget 
approval 

 No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

All Wards    Open 

 

Poole 
Regeneration 
Update 

To update Cabinet and 
the public on projects 
and activities in Poole 
Town Centre 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

Poole Town relevant 
stakeholders to 
the Poole 
Regeneration 
Programme 

 Chris Shephard Open 

 

P
age 95



What is the 
subject? 

What is the purpose 
of the issue? 

Is this a 
Key 

Decision? 

Decision 
Maker and 
Due Date 

Wards Who are the 
key 

stakeholders to 
be consulted 

before the 
decision is 

made? 

What is the 
consultation 
process and 

period 

Officer writing the 
report 

Is the report 
likely to be 

considered in 
private (i.e., it 

contains 
confidential or 

exempt 
information)? 

 

Thistle Hotel, 
Poole Quay - 
Lease 
restructure 

To seek authorisation 
to restructure a lease to 
enable a third party 
Hotel/Residential 
development to 
proceed 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

Poole Town   Rebecca Bray Open 

 

Crime & 
Disorder 
Reduction 
Strategy 

To agree & adopt a 
BCP Crime & Disorder 
Reduction Strategy 

No Cabinet 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

All Wards Community 
Safety 
Partnership 

 Andrew Williams Open 

 

P
age 96


	Agenda
	6 Scrutiny of the BCP Futureplaces Ltd - Revised business plan and funding mechanism Cabinet report
	Appendix A BCP FuturePlaces Ltd Business Plan, 22/06/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix 1 Confidential, 22/06/2022 Cabinet

	7 Bournemouth Development Company LLP Winter Gardens Scheme – Project update
	8 Work Plan
	Scrutiny request form Jan 22 update
	Appendix 3  - Cabinet Forward Plan published 26 April 2022, 19/05/2022 Corporate and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee


